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MHREREFHE

Financial Highlights and Five Years Summary

ZETX
(B&%

BEET)

2006
B aE ZETHFE  (Asrestated, ZFTTEF ZTT)/\F ZFBAF
Notes 2005 Note 1) 2007 2008 2009

ES Results
(AAREFITHIR) (expressed in RMB'000)

et Turnover 430,817 504,187 574,298 725,199 598,947

EF Gross profit 72,223 98,567 68,983 99,123 97,272

ARBVHEE AEM Profit attributable to the owners

S ) of the Company 41,711 58,437 21,554 24,925 42,044
BB (ARE) Earnings per share (in RMB) 2 0.139 0.184 0.054 0.062 0.105
AEFFIE - T8 - Earnings before interest, 57,638 82,574 54,295 74,462 90,536

TEREHERI AR taxation, depreciation

and amortisation
("EBITDA")

B AR R Financial Positions

(AARETTHIR) (expressed in RMB'000)

BB E Total assets 3 313177 578,723 768,459 640,725 638,082

waEE Total liabilities 162,715 275,097 441,441 291,794 250,134

BIEEE (ANRE) Net assets per share (in RMB) 4 0.50 0.76 0.82 0.87 0.97

g 3u gz Financial Ratios

VEIEES Current ratio 5 07 13 09 038 1.1

B = Quick ratio 6 05 1.1 08 06 0.9

BELE Gearing ratio 7 24.2% 14.4% 34.3% 36.8% 34.1%

BT Notes:

1 ZETREZHFEEY  BEATRR: (WHAE-ZZ+F—A— 1 The figures in 2006 were restated in order to reflect (1) the change in accounting policies
BRERMBEAGIERIE 405 [1BEYME] (REMERARAER as a result of the adoption of Hong Kong Accounting Standard 40 “Investment Property”
RIBR) B GTBREE)  RQECEEZR2INARKZEES (investment properties to be accounted for using the fair value model) with effective from
FER AL  MABECEEERUEERANAREE ST EM 1 January 2007 and (2) the treatment of the endorsed bills which were presented as bills
“ETLET AT HIEMBRFEZ E SRR R E M ER R receivable until maturity and such endorsed bills were not applied to reduce the amounts
B AT BEFEE_ETRFT A=+ —HUEFEZHBREK of trade and other payables for the financial years ended 31 December 2006 and 2007.
LAYELL B ) B RI4T © However, it is not practicable to restate the financial statement for the year ended 31

December 2005 for comparison purposes.

2 ARATER ABIEGER - 2F 8 ETRM NEF 2 Profit attributable to the owners of the Company + weighted
B - GRERRFITIIREMNETFHREBEE - average of issued shares for the year. (The calculation of basic
MRBZE-ZZZHF —TTRF T2+ earnings per share is based on the weighted average number

REFN = F ZFENER-TTNFF+-A=+—HL Earnings pershare = of 300,000,000, 318,082,192, 400,000,000, 400,000,000 and
REFE 2 hnkEFI R E 5 51 4 300,000,000 f% 400,000,000 shares for the five years ended 31 December 2005,
318,082,192 % + 400,000,000 % ~ 400,000,000 % 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009 respectively)
400,000,000 f% ©

3 HBAE = IERBEE+ REEE 3 Totalassets = Non-current assets + Current assets

4 BEER - FREEETRE(R_ZZTHF = 4 Shareholders’ equity = Number of issued shares of the
TTRF - ZTTLF  ZTT)\FR=ZTTA Company at the year end (As at 31 December 2005, 2006, 2007,

ERFEE = F+-A=+—8 G SRFEEDNHHREDE Net assets per share = 2008 and 2009, the calculation of net assets per share is based
17 B% 1% 300,000,000 A% ~ 400,000,000 fi% * 400,000,000 on the number of issued shares of 300,000,000, 400,000,000,
fi& + 400,000,000 #% % 400,000,000 fx 515 © ) 400,000,000, 400,000,000 and 400,000,000 respectively.)

5 WBLEE = RBEE - RDHEE 5 Current ratio = Current assets =+ Current liabilities

6 REpLLE = (RBBE-7FY) - ek 6  Quickratio = (Current assets - Inventories) + Current liabilities

7 & L= _ FEEIRESRIRESEEERE Y 7 Gearing ratio _ Netdebts (Total borrowings net of cash and

EERE) + RRER

cash equivalents) + Shareholders’ equity
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MBERERIFHRE

Financial Highlights and Five Years Summary

EHERE errr)
TURNOVER rwvB000)

85,789 513,158

143,778 581,421

122,599 451,699

120,132 384,055

87,368 343,449

R BB NGB mnrn)

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS

OF THE COMPANY (rvB'000)

* CIREAFZEFEEN  ZRATRE: VEAE-RRLE-A—
FERMNE B ERFE 405 [REME] (REVERBAAER
HIR) H R B BRED) : RQEBERB2IARUEERES
FHMAR/L  MAEMCSERZRLBEANTREE ST REM
Rt AT HUEMREEZESRNREEMEN R
e Al BENBE_TTRAF+ A=+ RALEFEZHHRER
SAELL A AN E AT ©

ER wzmrr)
GROSS PROFIT (rvs000)

REtFIE -~ BB - ITERBERRR (ervr)
EBITDA (rvis000)

The figures in 2006 were restated in order to reflect (1) the change in accounting policies
as a result of the adoption of Hong Kong Accounting Standard 40 “Investment Property”
(investment properties to be accounted for using the fair value model) with effective from
1 January 2007 and (2) the treatment of the endorsed bills which were presented as bills
receivable until maturity and such endorsed bills were not applied to reduce the amounts
of trade and other payables for the financial years ended 31 December 2006 and 2007.
However, it is not practicable to restate the financial statement for the year ended 31
December 2005 for comparison purposes.
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Chairman’s Statement

BLRE

ANERREFAEER (EF R EFE ) RASHRE(
TERERAR ((AAT] - EAXKBARGE (ARE )W
E-PEAEHCAS T ALEEITERE -

FEXRE

EEEFEEAN AEEEERTERBAS B THUBKE
BERERRER - BRERSRERSI EMSHF KE=HERER
HEER T - AEEEERETREE AR 5989000007T
BN TR 174% - BRBIATSHRE_SZNFE_F
B RREBRNRE  #E-_TThF+-A=+—HILH
BEEAREEREBANEELELLG EFT 55%  EE857% -
EREFER - NEBEGEFL /AR 420000007 © BEFIH
tb EF687% « BESARBHEEEAR : (W AEEERNE
& EAHR () Ti5H RN AE B BUR R 558 5 & BE it
MeNETHFRE (VBB E LHEREERERATAE
BB AERERCR ¢ DAR (i) RMAEHERR T Q) EHTERRAR

LIU HONGLIANG B

Chairman 2=

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”), I am pleased to
present the annual report of Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited (the"Company”
and together with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2009.

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

The Group has achieved its estimated target to improve its financial results
and the return to its shareholders during the year under review. Due to the
diminution in the market demand and the decrease in our product selling
prices caused by the global financial turmoil, the turnover of the Group was
declined to approximately RMB598.9 million, representing a decrease of 17.4%
when compared with that of in the last year. The turnover of the Group from
the PRC market for the financial year ended 31 December 2009 increased
by 5.5% reaching 85.7% due to the rapidly recovery and rebound of market
demand in the PRC after the second quarter of 2009. The profit of the Group
for the year under review was approximately RMB42.0 million, representing an
increase of 68.7% when compared with that of in the last year. Such satisfactory
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RESULTS FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

growth was mainly attributable to (1) the increase in the gross profit margin
of the Group's products due to (i) the improved competitive environment
after the removal of inefficient market players caused by the diminution in the
market demand, (i) the enhancement of the Group’s production efficiency
as a whole after the effective integration of the production facilities of the
upstream products and (iii) the decrease in the raw material costs; (2) the
substantial decrease in the operating expenses due to the effective cost control
measurements implemented by the Group; (3) the absence of the one-off
provision for removal expenses of Weifang Common Chem Co. Ltd,, ("Weifang
Common”) and the written-off the government grants receivable previously
recognised as income represented the other operating expenses recorded in
2008; and (4) the decrease in the finance costs resulting from the decrease in
bank borrowing interest rates.

To cope with the global financial turmoil which has affected the global market
demand seriously since the fourth quarter of 2008, the Group has strive to
improve its internal operations by implementing various measurements
such as strengthening the enterprise cost control, consolidating the internal
resources and refining the production technical technology and facilities
throughout the year under review. The result was satisfactory. Furthermore,
these measurements have also further enhanced the business foundation of

the Group for supporting its long term business development.

The diminution in the market demand and the decrease in the products selling
price caused the decrease in the turnover of the Group when compared with
that of in the last year. However, the decline rate of the Group’s turnover was
less than the rate of contraction in the industry especially in the PRC market
during the year under review. The market demand was gradually rebound in
the second half of 2009 and it is expected that the growth momentum will be
continuously in view of the improving economic outlook. The Group will spare
no effort to grasp the growth opportunities to secure its market position and

expand its market share to sustain its future business growth.

During the year under review, the Group has also actively improved its
production efficiency by integrating the internal resources and refining the
technology of its production facilities. The Group will continuously refine its
production facilities and control as well as strengthen the cost-saving measures
to intensify the competitive advantages of the Group's products.
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FEXEE

BE-ZTAFLAMRG B RECHREFRENEET
fF - BRTE MEEBIE LR ENETT  ABRASE—_FT—F
FRA=ZTEMERBELERFFENEE - HRMETRZE
BEREMEE @ BAKEAEPESEERENALER -
R R — SR AR LR A EA EEN G RME - EEREE
RAELIETT - FULZIRB M E R ST ANEEEERE o o) - £
WBNEEZR  BBRDMNALEEER  ERERMNEER
NEBIER - AERNAENOTISHER - AEEIBEEDR
ENMEBNEE RGNS A EEEEEEE -

HLBEDAREEMZORMZ —  AEBDE_TT/\FHH
HE- BR ZEMTIZARABER - BARFTRREHEE
BAEMER - Bt - FEEEHEE_Z-ZEFHEAALEKY
FERNABRNREHER - ZERARBELEESA BB ER
SEEMERIEERA - LI - REBETRE A BIETSH L
BREM - FUETAB A BAREESHIAUA -

=2

Al AR R ZEBAFHELRSEEN TR - 2EELAE
B WEFREARNEE  LHEER - BB ANKFR
RIESHERIMEESR S AREBEMTISHSAER - 53
FIEE R E IR - MAEERAHEM LK - AEEGER
BRI HENE - RERREAEEER - ARAKER
AR FREELERMEMBELER S BEARFNE
ERGMAEANREWER  REBEFTWE L RRELE -
WERAERFRISE(ERA

=l

ik

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

Weifang Common has commenced the removal and relocation works since
July 2009. The current removal and relocation process is on schedule and
anticipated that the entire production plant will be removed and relocated
completely before 30 June 2010. The removal and relocation of production
plant of Weifang Common will benefit the Group as a whole as the production
efficiency will definitely be enhanced given by the consolidated integration of
production facilities and internal resources of the Group as well as the synergy
effect of upward vertical integrated production will be further magnified. In
addition, after the removal and relocation, the production capacities of esters
products will be enlarged by fully utilising the production resources in order to
cope with the promising market demand. The Group believed that the removal
and relocation of Weifang Common will eventually improve the results of the

Group as a whole.

Chloroacetic acid is one of the core raw materials of the Group’s products
which had been produced by the Group since 2008. Currently, such product
is mainly for internal consumption but the internal demand had exceeded
the existing production capacity. Therefore, the Group planned to increase
production capacity of chloroacetic acid in 2010 to meet the internal
consumption needs. The large scale production of such product will reduce the
production costs of the Group's other products effectively. Besides, the Group
has also planned to sell such product to the market and thus new revenue will

be generated to the Group in near future.

PROSPECTS

Presently, the global economy is recovering and the market demand has
vastly improved as a result of the world governments launching the economic
stimulus packages, especially in the PRC where the strong supporting
policies have driven consumer spending and consumption demand and
the Group is expecting that the market will then be revitalised and become
more competitive whilst the production costs will be arising consequently.
The Group will closely observe the ongoing variability and adopt any
countermeasures promptly. As the Group has improved its operating
efficiency and refined the production efficiency in past years, the Group has
full confidence in overcoming such challenges by its well developed operating
system and solid foundation laid down in the industry and committed to

achieve better results in the coming year.
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PROSPECTS (Continued)

Looking ahead, the upbeat PRC economy is likely to continue drive the growth
in domestic market demand of downstream industries of the Group’s products,
such as adhesive industry, pharmaceutical industry, pesticide industry etc.
Barring unforeseen circumstances, it is expected that a steady growth of the
Group's results will be sustainable in light of the robust growth of downstream
industries of the Group as most of the turnover of the Group is generated from
the PRC. The Group will continuously focus on its core markets and capitalise
any growth opportunities along with industrial development. The Group has
great confidence in its future steady development and stable business growth
as well as in securing the business development of the Company that will be in

line with the interests of shareholders of the Company.

DIVIDEND

In view of the positive results performance, a final dividend of HK2.50 cents
per share will be proposed. The Company commits to be mindful in striking a
balance between meeting investors’ expectation for financial returns and the

prevailing financial position of the Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Company, | would like to take this opportunity to express
sincere gratitude to our members of the Board for their diligent guidance and
leadership, to our employees for their industrious work and contribution to the
success of the Group and also to our customers and business partners for their

continuing trust and support.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Hongliang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2010
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B s4mn AEEMITES  TERERAZ - BEE
EEAEEBEREMEERIBE - RN ZFREERE
ROomBk(ABWATEAMARZ(ER))  TEERNEHRI
T o kA B~ NNZFRE— NN = FER D T R
MEPTEBRE+F - K& - BIEEREMA TR —NARER
SRR EEE MERARAR (DRG] » BlISARE
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E o MR — NN FENREC T TREMBRE S RARE

E%uu—ﬁ%mﬁ&lkﬁﬂi BRENR_ZTTF+_AMBARE
P BEAECTEHEAR 25 FER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LIU Hongliang, aged 54, is an executive Director, the chairman and one
of the founders of the Group. Mr. Liu is responsible for the overall strategic
development and policy of the Group. He graduated from the East China
Petroleum Institute (now known as the University of Petroleum (East China)) in
1982, majoring in basic organic chemistry. Mr. Liu spent more than ten years
from 1982 to 1993 in Weifang New Technology Research Centre. After that, Mr.
Liu established Weifang Tianhong Corporate Management and Consultancy
Company Limited ("Weifang Tianhong") with others in 1996. Mr. Liu has over 25

years of experience in the chemical industry.

WANG Zijiang, aged 45, is an executive Director, the deputy general
manager and one of the founders of the Group. Mr. Wang is responsible
for the management and supervision of the overall purchase and logistic
operation of the Group. He graduated from the Nanjing Chemical College
(now known as the Nanjing University of Technology) in 1988, majoring in
chemical engineering. He spent three years since 1991 working in Weifang
New Technology Research Centre. After that, Mr. Wang established Weifang
Tianhong with others in 1996. Mr. Wang has over 15 years of experience in the

chemical industry.

GUO Xitian, aged 48, is an executive Director and deputy general manager of
the Group. Mr. Guo is responsible for the overall production and technology
development of the Group. He graduated from the East China Petroleum
Institute (now known as the University of Petroleum (East China)) in 1982,
majoring in basic organic chemistry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Guo had
been working in Shandong Zibo Dongfeng Chemical Factory. Mr. Guo joined
the Group in March 1999. Mr. Guo has over 25 years of experience in the

chemical industry.

GUO Yucheng, aged 53, is an executive Director of the Group. Mr. Guo is
responsible for the overall safety and environmental protection of the Group.
He graduated from the East China Petroleum Institute (now known as the
University of Petroleum (East China)) in 1982, majoring in basic organic
chemistry. Prior to joining the Group in 2000, Mr. Guo had been working for
Weifang Organic Chemicals Factory since 1982. He was accredited as a senior
engineer by The Jury of Senior Title of Chemical Technical Post, Shandong
Province in 1994. Mr. Guo joined the Group in December 2000. Mr. Guo has

over 25 years of experience in the chemical industry.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LEUNG Kam Wan, aged 44, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director since T March 2007. Mr. Leung graduated from the Hong
Kong Baptist University and The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a
degree of Bachelor of Business Administration in Finance and a master degree
in corporate governance in 1992 and 2007 respectively. Mr. Leung is an
associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
a fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, an associate
of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and an associate
of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. Leung has been a
practicing certified public accountant for over 10 years. He has extensive
experience in financing, accounting and auditing. Mr. Leung currently is the
managing director of Leung Kam Wan CPA Limited.

GAO Baoyu, aged 48, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director since 4 October 2006. He is the professor of environmental
engineering and the dean of the school of environmental science and
engineering of the Shandong University. He is also the tutor of the post-
graduate students studying for doctorate degrees and the leader of the
youth science subject of the Shandong University. He was recognised as one
of the Ten Outstanding Young Scientists in Shandong Province in 2002. He
graduated from Tsinghua University in January 1999 with a doctorate degree in

engineering majoring in environment engineering.

LIU Chenguang, aged 48, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director since 4 October 2006. Mr. Liu has obtained from the East
China Petroleum Institute (now known as the University of Petroleum (East
China)) a bachelor degree in science majoring in petroleum refining in 1982
and a master degree in applied chemistry in 1985. He obtained his doctorate
degree in applied chemistry from the University of Petroleum (Beijing) in 1991.
Mr. Liu has been an associate professor of the University of Petroleum (East
China) since 1992, then was promoted as a professor in 1994 and subsequently
the tutor of the post-graduate students studying for doctorate degrees in
1998. Mr. Liu is the dean and professor of the faculty of chemistry and chemical
engineering of the University of Petroleum (East China). He is a member of
China Petroleum Society, China Chemistry Society, China Chemical Society,
American Chemistry Society and director of Shandong Chemistry and Chemical

Society.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CHAK Kwan, aged 43, has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director since 4 October 2006 and has been re-designated as the deputy
general manager of the Company since 2 March 2007. With effective from 1
January 2008, Mr. Chak has been promoted as the general manager of the
Group. Mr. Chak graduated from the Shanghai Fudan University with a bachelor
degree in arts and The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a master degree
in corporate finance in 1990 and 2005 respectively. Mr. Chak is a member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Chak was the qualified accountant of SIIC Medical Science and Technology
(Group) Limited and the assistant general manager and financial controller of
Nanyang Brothers Tobacco Company Limited. Mr. Chak has extensive working
experience in accounting and corporate finance fields in Hong Kong and the
PRC.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

During the year under review, the turnover of the Group has dropped
to approximately RMB598.9 million, representing a decrease of 17.4% as
compared with that of approximately RMB725.2 million in 2008. The decrease
in turnover was mainly due to the diminution in the market demand and the
decrease in the products selling price caused by the global financial turmoil
especially in the first quarter of 2009.

Gross Profit

The gross profit of the Group slightly declined reaching approximately RMB97.3
million, representing a decrease of 1.8% as compared with approximately
RMB99.1 million in 2008. However, the overall gross profit margin of the Group
was increased by 2.5% to 16.2% when compared with 13.7% in 2008. It was
mainly due to () the improved competitive environment after the removal of
inefficient market players caused by the diminution in the market demand, (i)
the enhancement of the Group's production efficiency as a whole after the
effective integration of the production facilities of the upstream products, and
(i) the decrease in the raw material costs.

Operating Income and Expenses

The other income was mainly comprised (i) release of deferred income; (ii)
gain on disposals of prepaid land lease payments and property, plant and
equipment; (iii) bank interest income; (iv) rental income; (v) government grants
and (vi) others during the year under review.

Selling expenses decreased by approximately RMB5.2 million from
approximately RMB27.8 million in 2008 to approximately RMB22.6 million.
Such decrease in expenses was principally as a result of the decrease in the
transportation costs and the sales commission which were in line with the
decline in turnover. Selling expenses as a percentage of the Group's turnover
remained 3.8% in 2009 (2008: 3.8%).

Administrative expenses dropped by approximately RMB5.1 million from
approximately RMB31.4 million in 2008 to approximately RMB26.3 million
in 2009. The decrease was mainly due to the decline in other local taxes,
exchange loss and penalty expenses. Administrative expenses expressed as a
percentage of the Group's turnover was 4.4% in 2009 (2008: 4.3%).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Operating Income and Expenses (Continued)

The other operating expenses of approximately RMB5.2 million incurred in
2008 represented the one-off provision for the removal expenses of Weifang
Common and the written-off the government grants receivable previously
recognised as income. No similar items happened during the year under
review. The removal expenses for the production plant of Weifang Common
incurred during the year under review which was offset against the provision
made in 2008.

Finance Costs

The finance costs mainly comprised bank borrowings interest and discounted
bills interest, which were decreased by approximately RMB3.1 million from
approximately RMB13.4 million in 2008 to approximately RMB10.3 million in
2009. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in interest borrowing rates
and slightly reduced bank borrowing amounts during the year under review.
The bank borrowings of the Group were mainly used in financing the capital

expenditure and general working capital requirements of the Group.

Profit for the Year

Although the turnover of the Group has been adversely affected by the
global financial turmoil, the gross profit was decreased slightly as the gross
profit margin was improved. Profit for the year has significantly increased by
approximately RMB17.1 million to approximately RMB42.0 million, representing
an increase of 68.7% as compared with that of approximately RMB24.9 million
in 2008 which mainly attributable to the decrease in operating expenses and
finance costs as well as the improvement of the gross profit margin during the

year under review.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's primary source of funding included the net cash inflow generated
from operating activities of approximately RMB47.2 million (2008: RMB83.6
million); newly raised bank borrowings of approximately RMB124.0 million
(2008: RMB64.7 million); interest income of approximately RMB0.3 million
(2008: RMB0.4 million), proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
and prepaid land lease payments of approximately RMB11.3 million (2008:
nil). With the financial resources obtained from the Group's operations, the
Group had invested approximately RMB48.4 million (2008: RMB82.4 million) in
the acquisition of the property, plant and equipment; borrowing repayments
of approximately RMB134.5 million (2008: RMB62.8 million); interest paid of
approximately RMB10.1 million (2008: RMB13.2 million) and dividends paid of
approximately RMB4.4 million (2008: RMB4.5 million) during the year under
review. As at 31 December 2009, the Group had cash and bank deposits of
approximately RMB16.8 million (2008: RMB31.4 million), of which 86.1% was
held in Renminbi, 10.0% was held in Hong Kong dollars and the remaining
balance was held in United States dollars. During the year under review, the

Group did not use any financial instruments for any hedging purposes.

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had recorded net current assets of
approximately RMB17.0 million (2008: net current liabilities of RMB37.4 million),
the current ratio of the Group was approximately 1.1 times (2008: 0.8 times),
bank borrowings of approximately RMB149.2 million (2008: RMB159.6 million)
and the gearing ratio which is represented by the ratio of net debts (total
borrowings net of cash and cash equivalent) to total shareholders’ equity,
was approximately 34.19% (2008: 36.8%). The decrease in the gearing ratio was
due to the decrease in capital expenditure resulted in the reduction of bank
borrowings during the year under review.

The gearing ratio of the Group has been improved when compared with
that of in the previous year and achieved a net current assets balance given
by the effective control on capital expenditure as well as the operating and
production costs during the year under review. The Group has continuously
generated the positive cash inflow from its operations and together with
its existing cash resources and available banking facilities obtained from its
bankers, the Group has sufficient financial resources to meet its commitments
and working capital requirements. The Group will continuously manage its
cash outflow closely and cautiously in coming years and dedicate to maintain a

sound financial position and improve the equity return to its shareholders.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2009, no bank deposit (2008: RMB10.0 million) was pledged
for bills facilities. Certain properties, plants and equipment of the Group
with an aggregate net book value of about RMB19.6 million (2008: RMB30.4
million), prepaid land lease payments of approximately RMB57.7 million (2008:
RMB62.3 million) and no leasehold land and building in the PRC provided by
a related party (2008: RMB5.5 million) was pledged to secure the Group's bank
borrowings.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had capital commitments which has
been contracted but not yet been provided for in the aggregate amount of
approximately RMB2.7 million (2008: RMB17.1 million) and which has been
authorised but not yet been contracted for in the aggregate amount of
approximately RMB25.7 million (2008: RMB12.4 million) relating to purchase of

property, plant and equipment, and construction-in-progress.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates

The Group's operation is mainly in the PRC and its assets, liabilities, revenues
and transactions are mainly denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and
United States dollars.

The Group's foremost exposure to the foreign exchange fluctuations was
caused by the revaluation of Renminbi during the year under review. Most of
the Group’s income and expenses are denominated in Renminbi except those
for the Group's export sales which were, in majority, denominated in United
States dollars. However, the Group has not experienced any material difficulties
or effects on its operations or liquidity as a result of the fluctuations in currency
exchange rates during the year under review. Besides, the Group will consider
cost-efficient hedging methods in future foreign currency transactions when
appropriate.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2009, the Group has 721 full-time employees (31 December
2008: 906) of whom 633 were production and warehouse employees, 25 were
sales and marketing employees, 9 were research and development centre
employees, and 54 were management and back-office supporting employees.
The decrease in the number of employees was mainly due to the enhanced
production efficiency of the Group during the year under review.

For the year under review, the total staff costs incurred including directors’
remuneration increased to approximately RMB31.5 million (2008: RMB29.7
million).

The Group has established its human resources policies and scheme with a
view to deploying the incentives and rewards of the remuneration system
which includes a wide range of training and personal development programs
to the employees. The remuneration package offered to the staff was in line
with the duties and the prevailing market terms. Staff benefits, including
medical coverage and provident funds, have also been provided to the
employees of the Group.

The employees would receive discretionary bonuses and monetary rewards
based on their ratings in annual performance appraisals of the Group. The
Group also offered rewards or other incentives to the employees in order to
motivate their personal growth and career development, such as ongoing
opportunities for training to enhance their technical and products knowledge
as well as their knowledge of industry quality standards. All new employees
of the Group are required to attend an introductory course and there are also
various types of training courses available to all the Group’s employees.

The Company has also adopted a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the success of the Group’s operations. During the year under review, no share
option of the Company has been granted.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group continued to achieve a positive
profit growth even though the turnover of the Group was adversely affected
by the global financial turmoil and was recorded a decrease. The positive
profit growth was mainly attributable to the Group's dedication to implement
stringent production and operating cost control measurements and integrated
and consolidated the internal resources thus enhanced the business efficiency.

The Group has also constantly enriched and diversified its products portfolio
and increased its investment in new products with market potential. Currently,
the main products of the Group were classified into four categories and the
Group will concentrate and devote its effort on the further enhancement and

development of such products categories in foreseeable future.

Cyanoacetic acid and its esters products is the most important product
category to the Group, accounting for 86.1% of the Group's total turnover. Due
to its superior product quality, having stable and loyal customer groups and
competitive price, this product category was continuously outperformed other
product categories during the year under review. As the need of this product
category in the downstream industries is relatively broad and it has a long term
continuous growth market demand, the outlook for this product category
is promising. The production scale of some good potential esters products
will further be expanded whilst its production efficiency will also be greatly
enhanced after the removal and relocation of production plant of the Weifang
Common. The competitive advantage of such product category will then be
further reinforced. The Group will continuously dedicate to deploy its resources
in expanding the products portfolio of such product category by exploring
new potential products and/or adjusting the product mix to maintain this

product category as the key driver for the Group's revenue in the future.

The other product category namely chloroacetic acid and its derivatives
products was mainly used for internal consumption. Currently, the internal
demand of chloroacetic acid product exceeds its existing production
capacities. The production capacity of such product is scheduled to be
expanded in the first half of 2010 to cope with the internal demand and the
Group's planned external sales. Consequently, the production costs of the
other products of the Group will be further lower by taking the enhancement
of production capacity of such product that will be reinforced the advantage of
economies of scale. Besides, new revenue will be generated by the Group from

the expected external sales.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The Group has actively and rapidly explored the petrochemical product
category, which has gained certain extent of market recognition during the
year under review. The production capacity of such product category was not
fully utilised since the Group devoted its effort to refine production technology
and facilities of this product category during the year under review. After the
production technology refinement, the production facility of such product
category will be the first manufacturing plant in the PRC capable to produce
both products of high reactive polyisobutylene and common polyisobutylene.
This strategic move can widen the downstream industries application and
the economic benefits of the production will be greatly enhanced which
in turn improves the profitability of such product category. The production
technology refinement works have completed during the year under review.
The performance of petrochemical products is expected to be improved in
the coming years. It is foreseen that the petrochemical product category still
has a room of growth and development, the Group will continue to strive to
pursue a low production cost and speedily expand its market coverage of such
products in the coming year in order to achieve the expected profitability of
such product category.

The turnover of alcohols products of the Group were declined due to the sole
supplier undergone upgraded works on its production facilities which in turn
affecting the quantity of supply during the year under review. Besides, the
profit was adversely affected by the keen market competition, thus a relatively
low profit margin. Nevertheless, the Group will continue to devote to maintain
a steady development of such product category in future.

The Group will continue to enhance and improve the production efficient of
each product category and further realise the synergy between the product
categories so that the competitive strength of the Group’s products will be
reinforced.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Resumption and Relocation

According to the resumption of land (the “Resumption”) notice, the usage of
the area that Weifang Common is located changed from industrial use to non-
industrial use in accordance with the working direction laid down by the local
government (please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 18
November 2008 for details). There are three plots of land (the “Land") owned by
Weifang Common as its production plant which are not consistent with such
working direction and are subject to resumption. Two plots of the land were
formally resumed in November 2008 and December 2009 respectively but the
Group is still allowed to use such plots of land and operate the production
continuously before 30 June 2010. The Group is still negotiating with the
relevant local authorities for the amount of compensation and the terms of
resumption for the remaining piece of land and no final terms have been

reached up to the date of this report.

The Group has planned the removal and relocation works of the structures
erected on the Land by phases and expected to be completed before 30 June
2010 according to the current schedule of the Group. Since the production
facilities erected on the Land can almost be removed and relocated to the
other nearby production plants of the Group within Weifang city, PRC for its
continuous operation and the scale of production will not diminish after the
removal and relocation, and the back-up production capacity was available in
another nearby production plant of the Group, the production capabilities in
the transitional of each phase will be sustained.

The management anticipated that the removal and relocation will be
completed on schedule and no adverse and material effect on the trading,
business operation, production and financial aspects to the Group as a whole
due to the Resumption. Besides, the Resumption provided an opportunity for
the Group to consolidate its production resources, integrate and enhance its
production capacities of various products and utilise the production facilities
fully and efficiently. The overall production and operating efficiency of the
Group will be further reinforced as a result of the resources concentrated for
realising the business strategy magnifying the synergistic effect of upward
vertically integration production. Ultimately, the removal and relocation as
a result of the Resumption will be beneficial to the Group's future business
development.
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OUTLOOK

The recovery of global economic will stimulate the growth of market demand
in coming years. The growth of market demand in the PRC will continue
sustained by the strong domestic consumption. The Group will capture
emerging opportunities by implementing various measures defending its
market shares and position so as to sustain its long term development. The
Group will strengthen its core products continuously in order to maintain the
profitability. Besides, the Group will delegate more resources in designated
high potential growth products with an aim to expanding the market
shares and achieving higher returns. The Group will also devote more effort
in research and development to reinforce the products advantages and
differentiation so as to drive and stimulate the growth on revenue and profit
to the Group in future. Meanwhile, the sales and marketing department of
the Group will also aggressively promote and expand market coverage of the
Group's products by deploying various appropriate marketing strategies to
enlarge the market shares of the Group’s products. The above measures will
strengthen the competitive advantages of the Group as a whole and lay a
solid foundation for its future development. The Group has confidence that
its turnover will return to a trend of continuous growth and its competitive

products will drive the growth of results of the Group in future.

Look forward, being a manufacturer located in the PRC, cost pressures will
become heavier as the upward trend of minimum wages for factory workers
and higher inflation induced by the rapid economic growth. Nevertheless, the
Group will take all appropriate means to strengthen its production efficiency
and cost-effective control measurements to minimise its operating costs and
enhance its long term business competitiveness. The Group is optimistic to its
future development and will strive to optimise the return to the shareholders of
the Company.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting the annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal business of
the Group includes the research and development, production and sale of
fine chemical products, which is broadly categorised into four major product
groups, namely the cyanoacetic acid and its esters products, the alcohols
products, the chloroacetic acid and its derivatives products and the fine
petrochemical products.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 are set out in

the consolidated income statement on page 44 of this annual report.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK2.50 cents
(2008: HK1.25 cents) per share. The final dividend will be payable by the
Company on Monday, 14 June 2010 to the shareholders on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on Friday, 14 May 2010,
subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company (the"2010 AGM").

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2010 AGM will be held on Friday, 14 May 2010. Shareholders of the
Company should refer to the details regarding the 2010 AGM in the circular of
the Company of 14 April 2010 and the notice of the 2010 AGM and the form of
proxy accompanying thereto.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the identity of the shareholders of the
Company entitled to receive the final dividend, and attend and vote at the
2010 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 12 May 2010 to Friday, 14 May 2010, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected. All transfers accompanied
by the relevant certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar
and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716 on the 17 Floor of Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 11 May 2010.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year under review in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 25 to the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2009.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on page 4 of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group on
pages 50 to 51 of this annual report and note 26 to the financial statements

respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Under Chapter 22 of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account of the Company can be used for paying distributions or
dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum or
Articles of Association and provided that immediately following the distribution
of dividend, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business. As at 31 December 2009, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to shareholders amounted in total to approximately RMB289.2
million (2008: RMB290.0 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year under review, the Group spent approximately RMB48.4 million
on property, plant and equipment to expand its production capabilities. Details
of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group are set
out in note 14 to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2000.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group's investment properties were revalued at the year end date. The fair
value increase on investment properties arising on revaluation amounting to
approximately RMBO0.5 million has been credited to the consolidated income
statement. Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group are
set out in note 16 to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2009.
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DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations totaling
approximately RMB0.04 million.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the five largest customers accounted
for approximately 17.5% (2008: 17.3%) of the Group's total turnover, whilst
the turnover attributable to the Group’s largest customer accounted for
approximately 3.8% (2008: 4.2%) of the Group's total turnover.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 33.1% (2008: 28.8%) of the Group's total purchases, whilst
the purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier accounted for
approximately 9.6% (2008: 6.9%) of the Group's total purchases.

At no time during the year under review did any Director, any associate of a
Director or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has an interest in

any of the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’
SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the financial year under review and up to the date of this

report are:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Liu Hongliang
Mr. Wang Zijiang

Mr. Guo Xitian

Mr. Guo Yucheng

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Leung Kam Wan

Mr. Liu Chenguang

Mr. Gao Baoyu

In accordance with Articles 86 and 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Liu Hongliang, Mr. Guo Xitian and Mr. Leung Kam Wan shall retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election as Directors at the 2010 AGM.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’
SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

The independent non-executive Directors were appointed for an initial term of
not more than three years and will be renewable automatically for successive
term of three years until terminated by not less than one month’s notice in
writing served by either party on the other.

The executive Directors have entered into service contracts with the Company
for a term of 3 years and thereafter shall continue from year to year until
terminated by giving three months’ notice in writing thereof by either party to
the other.

No Directors proposed for re-election at the 2010 AGM has an unexpired
service contract which is not determinable by the Company or any its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” set out
in this report and note 31 to the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2009 on “Related Party Transactions”, no contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or any time
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2009, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company and their associates in the shares and/
or underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES (Continued)

REQXBRGDZER Long Position in the shares of the Company
FTisiR e e~ IHE BT B EL
Metn ez HAE D (%)
NEL RS EE LR Number of Approximate %
SEHR Company / name of shares held / 51 in the total issued
Name of Director associated corporation interest in the Shares Capacity share capital
£l HIEEEARAF 292000000  REEE R 73.00%
Mr. Liu Hongliang Cheerhill Group Limited (M7E2)  Interest of controlled
(fF3E1) (Note 2) corporation
(Note 1)

GEX

#%55292,000000 R EBAEEEMERAR(EEDREFH
Mgz 2IPEBITRAD BB EL - TFIHRE 30
FHAE BULT  BEREERBLBELESRESES
38% ~ 26% ~ 11.5% * 11.5% * 6.5% % 6.5% °
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Notes:

1. The 292,000,000 Shares were held by Cheerhill Group Limited ("Cheerhill”), the entire
issued share capital of which is ultimately beneficially owned as to 38% by Mr. Liu
Hongliang, 26% by Mr. Wang Zijiang, 11.5% by Mr. Guo Xitian, 11.5% by Ms. Zheng
Hong, 6.5% by Mr. Guo Yucheng and 6.5% by Mr. Fu Anxu.

2. Mr. Liuis deemed to be interested in 292,000,000 Shares referred to in Note 1 above
by virtue of his 38% interest in Cheerhill.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executives of the
Company, nor their associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 31 December 2009.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2009, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO shows that the following
shareholder had notified the Company of its relevant interests in the issued

share capital of the Company:
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Long position of substantial shareholders in the shares and/or
underlying shares

FrEsR 88 BB BEITIRABE

figtn #ean S i a4 RE BATE S L (%)

Number of shares held / Approximate %

AR T interest in the Shares B15 in the total issued

Name of shareholders and aggregated interest Capacity share capital

Eig (FEE) 292,000,000 BEREAA 73.00%
Cheerhill (Note) Beneficiary owner

FisE Note:
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The 292,000,000 Shares were held by Cheerhill, the entire issued share capital of which is
ultimately beneficially owned as to 38% by Mr. Liu Hongliang, 26% by Mr. Wang Zijiang,
11.5% by Mr. Guo Xitian, 11.5% by Ms. Zheng Hong, 6.5% by Mr. Guo Yucheng and 6.5%
by Mr. Fu Anxu.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified by any person
who had any interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2009, which are required to be notified to the
Company under the SFO or which are recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year under review was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures)

of, the Company or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to a lease (the “Lease”) entered into between Weifang Common,
being a major operating subsidiary of the Group, and Weifang Tianhong
Corporate Management and Consultancy Service Co. Ltd. ("Weifang Tianhong”),
Weifang Common leased the office premises owned by Weifang Tianhong for
a term of three years commencing on 1 April 2007 at an annual rental payment
of RMB155,400, payable at the end of each year. Weifang Tianhong is a
connected person to the Company as Mr. Liu Hongliang, Mr. Wang Zijiang, Mr.
Guo Xitian and Mr. Guo Yucheng, all being executive Directors of the Company,
have full voting control of Weifang Tianhong. The transaction under the Lease
constituted a continuing connected transaction of the Company. However,
as the Lease is a de minimise transaction under Rule 14A.33(3) of the Listing
Rules, it was exempt from the reporting, announcement and independent

shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Save as disclosed above and in note 31 to the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2009 on “Related Party Transactions’, there were
no other transactions which need to be disclosed as connected transactions
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules and no contract of
significance, between the Company, its controlling shareholders, or any of
its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries or in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, or which are required to be disclosed
under the Listing Rules or the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the laws
of Hong Kong) subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year

under review.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Group was entered into or existed

during the year under review.

CONFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all independent non-executive

Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the Group is set up by the Board on the basis of the
merit, qualifications and competence of the employees.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the Company
will be reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to factors
including the Group's operating results, responsibilities required of the
Directors and senior management and the comparable market statistics.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Under the share option scheme of the Company, the maximum number of
Shares available for issue upon exercise of all options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and other share option schemes
in aggregate shall not exceed 30% of the number of issued shares of the
Company from time to time. The total number of shares of the Company issued
and which may be issued upon exercise of all options (whether exercised,
cancelled or outstanding) granted in any 12-month period to each participant
must not exceed 1% of the number of shares of the Company in issue unless
approval by the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting. An option
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
at any time during a period to be notified by the Board, which must not be
more than ten years from the date of grant. Any Share allotted and issued on
the exercise of options will rank pari passu with other shares of the Company in
issue on the date of allotment.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days from the
date of offer, upon payment of nominal consideration of HKS$1 in total by the
eligible participants that become grantees. Each share option will be vested
immediately at the date when the option is accepted. The share options will
lapse immediately after the grantee ceases to be eligible participant of the
Group. The options will lapse due to the expiry of the option's exercise period.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to be issued upon
exercise of the options shall be no less than the higher of (i) the closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued
by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong on the date of grant; (i) the average
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share
of the Company on the date of grant. The subscription price will be established

by the Board at the time the option is offered to the participants.

No movement of the share option under the share option scheme of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2009. Details of the existing share
options are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

The fair value of the existing share options of the Company calculated are
inherently subjective and uncertain due to the assumptions made and the
limitations of the model used. The value of an option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change in variables so adopted
may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the

Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year under review, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report, based on
the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company has

maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF BEST PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining the high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on

pages 32 to 41 of this annual report.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code for dealing in securities
of the Company by the Directors. After specific enquiry by the Company, all the
Directors confirmed that they had complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code for the financial year ended 31 December 2009.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu acted as the auditor of the Company in respect
of the financial year ended 31 December 2007. At 27 October 2008, Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu retired as the auditor of the Company. RSM Nelson Wheeler
has been appointed as the auditor of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2008 to fill the casual vacancy and held office until the
conclusion of the 2009 annual general meeting of the Company.
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B 3BT (4F INDEPENDENT AUDITOR (Continued)
HEZZTZT)\F+_A=1T—HBUEVRFE  PHEE(EE) RSM Nelson Wheeler acted as the auditor of the Company in respect of the
SR EEAETEARARRMNZEM RS TNF+ A — financial year ended 31 December 2008. At 1 December 2009, RSM Nelson
A PinEEER) @ BBAMRERD FZ A —5 - Wheeler retired as the auditor of the Company. Grant Thornton has been
HESHMITEZE AR AR EZEEN AR IR 2 Rz appointed as the new auditor of the Company to fill the casual vacancy and
B BEEBEEARAR —E—EFRFTBFREARILL - will hold office until the conclusion of the 2010 AGM.

HEZZNFT _A=+—RALFEZVBBRREHEIES The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009 have been
STRITERZ - HETHEREAR-_Z-—SFRRBEFRE LR audited by Grant Thornton who is due to retire and, being eligible, shall offer

£ WA EREREE - themselves for reappointment at the 2010 AGM.
REEgm On behalf of the Board

B Liu Hongliang

s Chairman

58 —E-EF=A=+H Hong Kong, 26 March 2010
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The Group recognises the value and importance of high corporate governance

standards in the enhancement of corporate performance and accountability.

The Company reviews its corporate governance practices periodically to ensure
the practices continue to meet the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
The Board considered that the Company has complied with the applicable
code provisions of the Code during the year under review. The key corporate

governance practices of the Group are summarised as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD")

Accountable to the shareholders of the Company, the Board is responsible
for the overall management, business development and supervising all major
matters of the Company, including the formulation and approval of all policy
matters, overall strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and
monitoring the performance of the senior management. The Directors have to
take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board of the Company comprises seven Directors, including four executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The biographical
details of the Directors are set out on pages 10 to 11 of this annual report. The
composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director having sound
knowledge, experience and/or expertise relevant to the business operations
and development of the Group. All the Directors are aware of their collective
and individual responsibilities to the shareholders of the Company and
have exercised their duties with care, skill and diligence, contributing to the

successful performance of the Group.

There is no financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationship
among members of the Board and the Chairman. All of them are free to

exercise their independent judgement.

The Company has appointed the three independent non-executive Directors
that met the requirements of the Listing Rules, with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing the appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise. The Company has
received from each independent non-executive Director a written annual
confirmation of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules

and is satisfiled with their independence in accordance with the Listing Rules.

All the Directors are permitted to seek independent professional advice, if
required, at the Company’s expenses.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”)
(Continued)

All regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to facilitate the possible
fullest attendance. The meeting agenda is set after consulting with members
of the Board. Each Director is invited to present any businesses that he wishes
to discuss or propose at such meetings. Directors are required to abstain from
voting and will not be counted in the quorum present in the Board meeting if

any director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board.

The Directors have been invited to include any matters which they thought
appropriate in the agenda for the Board meetings. Notice of at least 14 days
has been given for each Board meeting. Board papers are circulated to all
Directors not less than 3 days before the Board meetings to ensure timely
access to relevant information. Each Director is able to access the management
of the Group separately and independently if more information is required.

The Board papers and minutes of the Company are kept by the Company
Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong. All draft
and final versions of minutes have been sent to Directors for review, comment

and record within 7 days after each board meeting.
(1) Responsibilities

The Board is collectively responsible for formulating the strategic business
direction of the Group and setting objectives for management, overseeing
its performance and assessing the effectiveness of management strategies.
The day-to-day operations and business strategies implementation of the
Group are delegated to the general manager of the Company. The Board
reviews the performance against the agreed targets and budgets on a
regular basis.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the "Model Code”) as its own code governing securities transactions of
the Directors. Each of the Director has confirmed his compliance with the
Model Code for the financial year ended 31 December 2009. The Company
has also adopted written guidelines on no less exacting terms than the
Model Code for the relevant employees. The senior management, who,
because of their office in the Company, is likely to be in possession of
unpublished price sensitive information, has been requested to comply
with the provisions of the Model Code and the Company's code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors. No incidence of
non-compliance of the employees’ written guidelines by the relevant

employees was noted by the Company during the year under review.
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(Continued)
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(2) Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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The Company does not presently have any officer with the title of
chief executive officer but with equivalent to the position of general
manager of the Company. In order to reinforce the independence and
accountability, the roles of the Chairman and the general manager are
segregated and performed by Mr. Liu Hongliang and Mr. Chak Kwan
respectively. There is a clear distinction responsibility of the Chairman to
mainly provide leadership for the Board and ensure the Directors receive
adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely manner with
support by the management to ensure the effectiveness of the Board. The
general manager is responsible for managing the day-to-day operations,
implementing business strategies and policies approved by the Board,
developing and formulating the organisational structure, control systems
and internal procedures and processes for the Board's approval. The
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and general manager has
been clearly defined and set out in writing.

(3) Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Safety and Environmental
Protection Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All committees have been established with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with their respective authorities and duties.

During the year under review, 4 Board meetings, 2 Audit Committee
meetings, 1 Remuneration Committee meeting and 1 Safety and
Environmental Protection Committee meeting were held. The attendance

record of each Director at the aforesaid meetings is set out below:
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EEe((EEg)) (&) BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”)
(Continued)

N EEZEEE(HF)

(3) Board Committees (Continued)

u”:n'f = uiﬁzuaﬁ
Attendance of meetings
22N
RREES
Safety and
EZEEY FEES Environmental
EEa Audit Remuneration Protection
Board Committee Committee Committee
HITES Executive Directors
Bt Mr. Liu Hongliang® 4/4 1/2 /1 /1
THI%kE Mr. Wang Zijiang 4/4 1/2 - Al
BARBEEE Mr. Guo Xitian 4/4 172 - 11
SRR ITE® Mr. Guo Yucheng’ 4/4 12 - 11
BAFHTES Independent non-executive Directors
RERESTE Mr. Leung Kam Wan"* 4/4 2/2 1 11
BEERLETC Mr. Gao Baoyu*** 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1
BBy hE Mr. Liu Chenguang®* 4/4 2/2 11 11
EEE Management
L BEE” Mr. Fu Anxu® = _ _ 11
FisE Notes:
. BREEGERE 1. Chairman of the Audit Committee
2. BIZEEEXE 2. Member of the Audit Committee
3. FMEEexR 3. Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
4. FHEEGKE 4. Member of the Remuneration Committee
5. BERBREBEXRE 5. Chairman of the Safety and Environmental Protection Committee
6. BERBRREEGKE 6. Member of the Safety and Environmental Protection Committee

ERZEGRR 2B UIRITEFRRELE S EF The Audit Committee comprises the three independent non-executive
EERBRNGE - RECREREZEG2ER  ®KEAE Directors, namely, Mr. Leung Kam Wan, Mr. Gao Baoyu and Mr. Liu
ETBRARE R G EXEER BEREZEENEER Chenguang. Mr. Leung is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and he
5BE: possesses recognised professional qualifications in accounting required by
the Listing Rules. The main duties of the Audit Committee include:
o EHAREEMMEMIN AR - AR R R H fth 6 .+ review the Group's financial statements on the compliance of the
SRR T HE AR accounting standards, the Listing Rules and other requirements in
relation to financial reporting;
o EEEAREE CUISRMAS RAEPEIERIE .« oversee the Group’s financial reporting systems and internal control
procedures;
o HMEZSHMANELERS  HRESSEBRITHBEL . discuss with the Board the system of internal control and ensure that
B AME AP EEIERAT the Board has discharged its duty and has an effective internal control

system;
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(3) Board Committees (Continued)

review the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations of
the independent auditor before the audit commences;

make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the independent auditor, and approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the independent

auditor;

evaluate the fairness and reasonableness of any connected transaction
and the impact of such transaction on the profitability of the Group
as well as the interest of the shareholders of the Company as a whole;

and

review the independent auditor’'s management letter and

management’s response.

Two Audit Committee meetings were held during the year under review to

discuss and review the following matters:

review the financial statements as at 31 December 2008 and 30 June
2009 with the compliance of the accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and other requirements in relation to financial reporting;

submit and recommend the Board to approve the financial

statements;

review the Group's financial and accounting policies and practices of

the Group;

review the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations
and evaluate the independence of the independent auditor and
to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment of the

independent auditor;

approval of the audit fees and terms of engagement of the

independent auditor;

review and discuss with the independent auditor regarding the issues

of management letter; and

make recommendations to the Board for improvement of internal

control system and procedures.
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(3) Board Committees (Continued)
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During the year under review, the Audit Committee has met the executive
Directors and management of the Company with the independent
auditor to review and discuss the integrity and any significant financial
reporting judgements of the financial statements of the Group. Besides, the
members of the Audit Committee had reviewed the reports of the internal
control self-assessment and the corporate compliance assessment in the
Board meetings.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu Hongliang, an
executive Director with Mr. Leung Kam Wan, Mr. Gao Baoyu and Mr. Liu
Chenguang as the three other members, all being independent non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible
for approving the remuneration policy of the Group as well as reviewing
and evaluating the remuneration packages of the executive Directors and
senior management to enable the Company to attract, retain and motivate
quality personnel. No Director shall participate in any discussion about his
own remuneration.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee has held one
meeting to review and approve the remuneration policy of the Group and
the remuneration packages for all the Directors and senior management of
the Company by reference to the Group's operating results and achieved
corporate objectives, after taking into account also the comparable market
conditions.

The Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company
are established with defined written terms of reference which deal
clearly with their authorities and duties. The term of reference of the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee are posted on the
Company's website and are available to shareholders of the Company
upon request.

The Board has established the Safety and Environmental Protection
Committee to enhance the safety and effectiveness of production
operations so as to eliminate the operating risk of the Group. The Safety
and Environmental Protection Committee comprised three members,
namely Mr. Guo Yucheng, an executive Director and the Chairman of the
Committee, Mr. Gao Baoyu, an independent non-executive Director and
Mr. Fu Anxu, a chief engineer of the Group. The Committee is delegated by

the Board to perform mainly the following duties:
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(Continued)

B)EEXET

(3) Board Committees (Continued)

o HIEAREEMBEZERRRAZLRENE  HESE - formulate the Group's overall safety and environmental protection
=4 plans and regulations for the approval by the Board;

o ERREBEWBARCAEEEER BRFEELSE - examine and supervise the production operations in the subsidiary
B2 22 RIRRBUOR LR EGIE level to ensure that they are followed to the Group's safety and

environmental protection policy and regulations;

o ERAKEZAEEENE S MBUTERFITERM 2 B «ensure the Group’s production operations are complied with all
BREBEEEREAER & relevant rules and regulations promulgated by the local government
authorities from time to time; and

o RIEMABRARENL 2 RIRREERIRF ° - handle all complaints regarding safety and environmental production
aspect of the Group.

FEOEFEEN  Z2MRREEGEER—REE - IR The Safety and Environmental Protection Committee has held one meeting
wmEkEMTIEE : during the year under review to discuss and review the following issues:
1. BRI RITE R MR8 Al TR 3T 1. review and discuss the feasibility study of the refinement of

desulfuration procedures and facilities; and

2. FHMASRERIEHEREE S UHERERRREEEARR 2. evaluate the plans for integrated utilisation of hydrochloric acid that
THRE o to meet the new environmental protection requirements will be

implemented by the States in future.

FEESEZEeRRSacIE AEERKEBER All Board Committees would report to the Board their works, indings and
MEFSFRER- recommendations in Board meetings.

AARIEKVIREEES - ESNEIRAESEES The Company has not established a Nomination Committee. The
BRES2E HIREYTESE EFeeZERS s HE full Board is involved in the appointment of new Directors by taking
HH 85 WERERESEIENER - into consideration criteria such as expertise, experience, integrity and

commitment when considering new director appointments.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (THE “BOARD”)
(Continued)

(4) Appointment, Re-election and Removal

All Directors are appointed for a specific term of three years and subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years in accordance with

the Articles of Association of the Company.

At each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being, or if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one third, are required to retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least
once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election
and shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at which he
retires. The Directors to retire by rotation will be those who have been the
longest in office since their last re-election or appointment but as between
persons who become or were last re-elected Directors on the same day
those retire will (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be
determined by lot.

A Director may be removed by an ordinary resolution of the Company
before the expiration of his period of time (but without prejudice to any
claim which such Director may have for damages for any breach of any

contract between him and the Company).

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board aims to present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment
of the Company’s performance, position and prospects to its shareholders and

the public pursuant to all sort of statutory requirements.

The Board is responsible for the handling of the dissemination of price sensitive
information and other financial disclosure requirements procedures. The
Board is fully aware of its obligations under the Listing Rules and reviews its
compliance controls process regularly. The Company should make disclosure
immediately pursuant to statutory requirements. The unauthorised use of
confidential or insider information is strictly prohibited under the Company's
policy. The general manager of the Company is identified and authorised
person to respond the enquiries made in connection with the Group's affairs.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
of the Group for each financial year and ensuring that these statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, its results and cash flows
for that period. The Directors are also responsible for ensuring that proper
accounting records of the Group which disclose the financial position of the
Group are kept at all times. In addition, the Board has reviewed and considered
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staffs of the
accounting and financial reporting function of the Group and also considered
the training programs and budget during the year under review.

Management is required to provide detailed reports and explanation to enable

the Board to make an informed assessment before approval.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibilities for the Group's system of internal control
and maintaining a sound and effective internal control system of the Group to
safeguard the Group's assets and the shareholders’ investment. All executive
Directors closely and directly monitor the daily operations, business activities
and review monthly financial results of the Group ensuring that compliance
controls and risk management measures and procedures are properly
implemented. All executive Directors participate in the monthly management
meetings or meetings held as and when required to address irregularities
immediately. Besides, the Board takes a constant review of the Group's financial
and operational procedures and critical risk management control to ensure the
internal control system is effectiveness.

The Group has implemented some operating controls including clearly defined
lines of responsibilities and ultimate accountability system, capital expenditure
and investment approval procedure, treasury and budgeting monitoring

systems etc.

Besides, the Group has continued to execute the self-assessment and
evaluation mechanism for internal control system during the year that is
aimed to test the reasonableness of the existing internal control mechanism,
prompt employee to step in evaluation of the implementation of internal
control system, serves to rectify control system immediately if any shortcoming,
facilitate the Board and the Audit Committee to assess the internal control

system of the Group more effectiveness.



REBEEEE (42

ERECRRBEFENRBTENENAEE L 2ERF RS E
TEHERE - TS IS REEBEERR  SERPHERE
g R EER R - BENREEBPIESNIAKT - B
SNETHEEEBER - RXBAREEBER  EFEC
SHEITET A RACIL A BREEHEARPT - ABIE B & B s A2
ST R R EREI IR A4 o

BERRNEE

ARBRBR BREFAGSERREAHEEBNEESR
B-BEEEIRLBERZBERFIRRE @2 ERAWEZA
ROGHEARBZBRBFERE  URABKREERHAEH
REEFBRELUBEEZEE  URRBRERRGREZA
EE

“EEAF AP ARAEKRS - HETBEEBA
MERRBEHAAERRAS RS - MIERRAG (WF) ESR
DHEZBEEARNEH - MAERRAS LIR2RRERY
IR R EITRR ©

EREFHRGR  ASTRCHEBETRRERENARRZ
AR WEMEARBBRRBIARR T FETRRMEZ LA
EfIRIRE -

T

REEFER - AR B SA RFERINE B EETA 600,000 7%
7T BHE ST

FiT RIS
e ET AR
EEEgm
TE
Bt=

B —_T-ZTF=A=-1+H

—EEBHEFH Annual Report 2009 4]

TRERMSE

Corporate Governance Report

INTERNAL CONTROLS (Continued)

The Board has continuous devoted to optimise the Group's operation system,
minimise its operational risks and any irregularities areas by periodically review
the operation procedures of the Group and to make continuous improvement
during the year under review. Even though an internal control department has
not yet built up until now, the Board is still continuous monitor the business
operation closely. The Board is planned to establish an internal control
department in near future to formulate more control measures and put in
place an integrated system of internal control so as to support the business
development of the Group.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers its annual general meeting as an important channel
for face-to-face dialogue with shareholders. The Chairman of the Board and
either the chairman of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee
or their representatives would attend the annual general meeting of the
Company answering and explaining to shareholders issues relating to the
Group's business strategies and financial results and proposed resolutions at
the general meeting.

Since 1 January 2009, all notices of general meeting have been dispatched
by the Company to its shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the
meeting and at least 10 clear business days in the case of all other general
meetings, if any. All resolutions put to the vote of a general meeting have been
passed by way of poll.

At the commencement of the meeting, the Chairman of the meeting has
explained the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and then answer any
questions from shareholders of the Company regarding voting by way of a poll.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration paid and payable to the
Company's independent external auditors of approximately HK$0.6 million is
set out as follows:

HK$400,000
HK$150,000

Audit services
Non-audit services

On behalf of the Board

Liu Hongliang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2010
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Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd.
To the members of Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tiande Chemical
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 44 to 112, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31 December
2009, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2009
and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton

Certified Public Accountants
6th Floor, Nexxus Building
41 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

26 March 2010
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£t —FEZ S F+— H=+1—HIFF/Z For the year ended 31 December 2009

BiaE —EEhE —ET)NF
Notes 2009 2008
ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
E Turnover 6 598,947 725,199
SHE A Cost of sales (501,675) (626,076)
EF Gross profit 97,272 99,123
H A A Other income 6 4,309 4579
EYESEE R Revaluation gain on investment properties 16 490 660
HEMX Selling expenses (22,634) (27,827)
1THRAX Administrative expenses (26,278) (31,398)
HEmaeafy Other operating expenses - (5,190)
JEUR %N Finance costs 7 (10,304) (13,380)
BRATS B AR R Profit before income tax 8 42,855 26,567
FTiSfiA > Income tax expense 9 (811) (1,642)
REERQNTHEEA Profit for the year attributable to
PSR the owners of the Company 42,044 24,925
BEERNTHEE A Earnings per share for profit attributable
EBihERER to the owners of the Company for the year 13
- /N ~ Basic AR¥o0.105 AR 0062
RMBO0.105 RMB0.062
-#E — Diluted TEH TERA
N/A N/A
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

B2 —TZNF+ = H=+—HIF/Z For the year ended 31 December 2009

—sEAE  —TT\F
2009 2008
ARETT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
IREERA Profit for the year 42,044 24,925
Hit 2@k (Bxk) Other comprehensive income/(expense)
MEBINEG I ISR EE 2 Exchange gain/(loss) on translation of
P& X s (E1E) financial statements of foreign operations 2 (39)
NEEHMEEKE (BIX) Other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year 2 39)
TEERATEEA Total comprehensive income for the year

Bi2EREAE attributable to the owners of the Company 42,046 24,886
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R —FEZSF+— H=-+—H As at 31 December 2009

BiaE —EEhE —ETNF
Notes 2009 2008
ARET T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEHEH ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EREEE Non-current assets
Y% - E Rk Property, plant and equipment 14 364,853 366,755
TEfS LA ERIR Prepaid land lease payments 15 57,880 63,371
"EMZ Investment properties 16 10,850 10,360
BEME  BEREEZ Deposits paid for acquisition of
BEfIET& property, plant and equipment 2,414 20,571
BT IEEE Deferred tax assets 17 355 826
436,352 461,883
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 18 43,222 39,960
B S AR RN EE Trade and bills receivable 19 110,947 97,477
FEAT R IE B E A U R TE Prepayments and other receivables 23,448 8,079
MR A E Current tax assets 3,708 1,963
EHIRRI TR Pledged bank deposits 20 - 10,000
RITRIR S Bank and cash balances 20 16,758 21,363
198,083 178,842
ERBEECFHEAFBIEFEEE  Non-current assets classified as held for sale 21 3,647 =
201,730 178,842
REBEE Current liabilities
B ZENRREN SRR Trade and bills payable 22 23,767 47,952
RIS ARAT BRI B A B 5 5K I8 Accruals and other payables 53,347 57,621
RITEE Bank borrowings 23 107,169 110,054
mETIA A E Current tax liabilities 451 639
184,734 216,266
REBEE(AE) F5HE Net current assets/(liabilities) 16,996 (37,424)
HEERABARSE Total assets less current liabilities 453,348 424,459
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
HRITEHE Bank borrowings 23 42,000 49,560
RIEWA Deferred income 24 21,412 24,152
BIEFIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 17 1,988 1816
65,400 75,528
EEFRE Net assets 387,948 348,931
= EQUITY
ARAREE AELER Equity attributable to the Company’s owners
&N Share capital 25 4,031 4,031
(] Reserves 26 383,917 344,900
BRER Total equity 387,948 348931
L F¥T
LIU HONGLIANG WANG ZIJIANG
BE BE
Director Director
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Statement of Financial Position

RZZFZFNF+=H=+1—H As at 31 December 2009

BiaE —EEhE —ETNF
Notes 2009 2008
ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
EEHEH ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EREBEE Non-current assets
M - RS MR A Property, plant and equipment 14 10 16
RHTB AT ZI’E Investments in subsidiaries 27 - -
10 16
RBEE Current assets
FEURKT B A R IR Amounts due from subsidiaries 27 191,188 191,659
FEUIAZ B, Dividend receivables 100,557 102,911
TE A5 SRR R H A FE KR IR Prepayments and other receivables 242 322
RITMIR S 54 Bank and cash balances 20 1,681 57
293,668 294,949
RBAE Current liabilities
JEASH AR AN BR AR B L JE ST RRIR Accruals and other payables 352 669
FETHT B A RIFIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 27 72 264
424 933
REBEERE Net current assets 293,244 294,016
BEEFE Net assets 293,254 294,032
P EQUITY
[N Share capital 25 4,031 4,031
] Reserves 26 289,223 290,001
R Total equity 293,254 294,032
EFFI
LIU HONGLIANG WANG ZUUIANG
BE

Director
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

£t —FEZ S F+— H=+1—HIFF/Z For the year ended 31 December 2009

BiaE —EEAF ZEENF
Notes 2009 2008
AR¥T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REERELECESRE Cash flows from operating activities
BRETS TR BT A m A Profit for the year before income tax 42,855 26,567
R Adjustments for;
FEUWA Interest income 6 (289) (427)
FMEFAEZ Interest expenses 7 10,304 13,380
BESH Amortisation 8 1,417 1,435
e Depreciation 8 35,960 33,080
FEIEW A B [ Release of deferred income 6 (2,740) (2,740)
(EERIR) SRIEFE (Reversal of write-down)/Write-down of
BEEZAERFE inventories to net realisable value 8 (1,328) 1,989
TEYFEE W EE Revaluation gain on investment properties 16 (490) (660)
[RFE L AR 25 2 IR X Equity-settled share-based payments expenses 8 1,371 1,508
HETER T EFIREYZ - Gain on disposals of prepaid land lease payments
R I 35ttt 2 F W a and property, plant and equipment, net 6 (494) -
B S EWRRREERE Impairment loss on trade receivables 8 203 -
HAbEWGRIE R EEE Impairment loss on other receivables 8 - 1,790
B EEE Provision for removal expenses 8 - 3,400
Rt & BE BB 28 5= A Operating profit before working capital changes 86,769 79,322
HF&Ggm),wm (Increase)/Decrease in inventories (1,934) 11,223
B SRR - B ERRE Increase in trade, bills and other
L Ath W R TE K RS B N receivables and prepayments (27,690) (30,944)
B RN  ENRBEAMEN  (Decrease)/Increase in trade, bills and
FRIE M R ARSBRER O D) /380 other payables and accruals (7,846) 27,278
JE 1T BRI 3 RIER Decrease in amount due to a related party - 39)
KEEBMER® Cash generated from operations 49,299 86,840
BT ATER Income taxes paid (2,101) 3,211)
A ETREE 2S5 5R Net cash generated from operating activities 47,198 83,629
REXBELEZRERE Cash flows from investing activities
BEMZE - WE MR Purchase of property, plant and equipment (48,418) (68,379)
BEYE  BEKREE Deposits paid for acquisition of
ZBAETE property, plant and equipment - (14,077)
HETE Tt E R Y Proceeds on disposals of prepaid land lease
RS M BB TS 2 5/ I8 payments and property, plant and equipment 11,305 -
2 HFIE Interest received 289 427
BERRITIERR D Decrease in pledged bank deposits 10,000 6,400
WEEBA R TR Net cash used in investing activities (26,824) (75,629)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

B2 —TZNF+ = H=+—HIF/Z For the year ended 31 December 2009

BiaE —EThE ZTTN\F
Notes 2009 2008
ARBTT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REXBELECRERE Cash flows from financing activities
BEARE Dividends paid 12(b) (4,400) (4,481)
BERFE Interest paid (10,136) (13,234)
BERITEE Repayments of bank borrowings (116,390) (52,430)
FIBRITEE New bank borrowings raised 124,000 64,700
EERIR R Net repayments of discounted bills (18,055) (10,413)
RMEXEKBZIRE F58 Net cash used in financing activities (24,981) (15,858)
REeRBEEEEERDFE Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (4,607) (7,858)
FVzE e RReEEER Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 21,363 29,207
SNERE R B 2 2 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 2 14
FRZEERRSEEER Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 16,758 21,363
ReRBRESEEBALHRIN Analysis of balances of cash

and cash equivalents
RITMIR S R Bank and cash balances 16,758 21,363
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

B FE - FETNF1 = F=+—Hi/E For the year ended 31 December 2009

HHEY
BBY  WEER WRil  ERHE B BERE
Bé BE  DEE EEE ffE  Foreign B&
BE  BORE  BABE  Sups  Propety  Public Sharebased  Capitdl  meny REEA  Proposed
Share Share  Special  reserve revaluation  welfare  payment contribution translation  Retained final A3
capital  premium  reserve fund  reserve fnd  reserve  reseve  reseve  profits  dividends Total

ARRTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR
RUBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBODO  RMBODD  AVBOM  AMBOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD RMBOOO

(Witaea) (Kit2eb) (260 (Wikosa) (Hiztee) (WiEoer) (Hfitas)

(note263)  (note26b)  (note 26¢) (note26d)  (note26e) (note26f)  (note 26g)
N-EENE-R-AER Balance at T January 2009 4031 89,544 318 13,599 1359 633 45 2,034 (741) 202,465 4400 348931
B8 Dividends pad - - - - - - - - - - (b0 (4400
RESENRATAERS Fouity-settd share ased paymentsexpenses - - - - - - M 0N - - -
EHEARS Transactions with owners - - - - - - MW - - k0 B0)
KEERH Profitfor the year . . . . - . . . - - R
A2EYE Other comprehensive income
BB FRIRRREE, Exchange qanon ranstion ofianci
Efla statements o foreign operatons . . . . - . . . 2 - . 2
FEEEMAMYREE Total comprehensive income forthe year - - - - - - - - 1w - Qe
g Trnsfer - - - M - - - - - s - -
ZIENFEERERE (M) 2009 proposed fnaldhidends note 12) - - - - - - - - < (B8O 8800 -

NoEEAETZAZT-REH Balance at 31 December 2009 4031 M 318 18807 1399 633 305 (139 230500 8800 387948
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B2 —TZNF+ = H=+—HIF/Z For the year ended 31 December 2009

=< #=%

mom

= B R

| e
B B8E Wi R R g
Bé GF  DR: EERE B&  Foeo k&
RE ROAE  %AEE  Supls  Popety  Publc Shebased Gl cmeny  REEH  Proposed
Shae Share  Specdl  reseve  revaluaion el payment contrbution  trantion  Retained final At
apid  pemun - resene fnd  resere fnd  reseve  resene  resene profits ~ dividends Total
NRETT ARET ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR¥TR ARETn ARBTn ARETn ARETT ARETR
AMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO ‘RMB‘OUO fMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOD
(W) (Hian) (Biskasc) (Wikoed) (itoee)  (Miaef)  (Bikaeg)
(note263)  [note26b)  (note 26¢) (ote26d)  (notedee)  oted6f)  (note 260)
HN-EENE-F-AEH Balance at T January 2008 401 8954 3118 123 1359 033 = %I (100 184266 4481 377018
Bifks Dividends pad - - - - - - - - - ) )
RESENRAT A ERS Fauity-settd share-based paymentsexpenses - - - - - - 9mm - - - Im
EHEARS Transactions with owners - - - - - - 9o - - e
KEERH Profitfor the year - - - - - - - - 1)) L))
RH2ERR Other comprehensive expense
BERZRIRRREEL Exchangelosson rnsltion of fnancil
EifE sttements o foreign operatons - - - - - - - - 69 - - 09
REEHMRAANE /(%) 48 Total comprehensive income(expense) for the year - - - - - - - - B9 95 - U
BE Tenr - - - - - - - - - -
“EE\EEERARE (Wit ) 2008 proposedt frel vidends note 1) - - - - - - . . N ) N .
HZBENEtR=1-RER Balance at 31 December 2008 T 1V RN € S i 9 ) W45 40 389
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE - EZNFA— H=+—HIFF/Z For the year ended 31 December 2009

1. —REH

RECIZERERAG(A2E]D) A—HERSHSR
BRSHESEETMR L EREBR AR AR R M
¥R BE & Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands © "R &) Z RN EBE S
RGBRATE LT -

AARNEBEBARERR - FAAWBLAEBLER
RS BEN 2 - AT REHBANERRELES
EX IR

FEESKZERARRERBELEB MK L EEE
EABRAR -

MBHRETDBARE (TARB D27 ERAEARZE
SIERRAKRE T ELENBRRZYEEE - KEE
FHSN - TR BB OB A A S RO THL

PBHMKREMEEE 112 ANVRBEEEVHRELRN(EFE
PHRELD | ZoaERAEREE A ((FEe
SHERAE |) PR E A RO T E (BB BRI EER - &
BERrER([EEasER ) kB (TRE))  UREE
RAVGEHIZ WEREMRE - WEHRRTEFEFEHAR
SIERARES EMRARE 2 ERREER -

BE_ZZNF+ A=+ —HIIFEZHBHRRER =
E-RFE=A-TANARARRESSHETE -

2. RAVHRRT SR B R BRE LR

RAFE  AEBGRRABRESSHMASEMG AT
A ERI KRB RFEAEARRY T NF—
A— Bz FERRZ A EBPBRREX -

1.

General information

Tiande Chemical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company's shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries (together with the
Company referred to as the “Group”) are set out in note 27 to the financial

statements.

The ultimate holding company of the Group is Cheerhill Group Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The financial statements are presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”) which is the
Company's presentation currency and functional currency of the principal
operating subsidiaries of the Group and all values are rounded to the

nearest thousand except when otherwise stated.

The financial statements on pages 44 to 112 have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"), Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS") and Interpretations (‘Int”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The financial
statements also include the applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009 were
approved for issue by board of the directors of the Company on 26 March
2010.

. Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the following
new standards, amendments and interpretations issued by the HKICPA,
which are relevant to and effective for the Group's financial statements for
the annual period beginning on 1 January 2009:
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2. AT REET BERMBHREER (F)

B ERISE 1 5% BTIRR 2 27
(ZEZLFRKIER)
HREHERE 235 fEERA

(ZEZEFKIER)

S e RS 27 57 RER BT

(ERTA) R B Bk
Bt N R AR AR
EBH RS 2R VAR S 2 F 2

25 (1B5TA)
BB GHREER
75 EFTA)
BB GRS 4R KENE
FE 85k
B8 (BRI TSRS B ME 2 ik
#EZEY)
—REE 155
I8 2T \FEBUBHRE
]|z FE#EIE A

— ER BB frRf Mt il
R R T ARELCE

BRIATERERR B S - R BB P IS REEREREE R
AR EE R BRR FR R 2R EERTE -

BBEIERE 15 (—FFLFEI5ET) B HZ 225

RABERB G ERNE 1R (CESLFKERT) HEEHK

BEROBARBEARIBOBARZEHRRZZIIMEHSE
TEE - JRsREIME - EJE&E&MKEIQE &

B WA ITH » 2@ TE - T —EEPARTE
EERNEENEARKES :\B“ﬁmi\ﬁﬂﬁlﬁé’ a0 3
HBINEIEI MR 2 E L ZH - SEHEAE 1SREE

T?’&ﬁ/\ﬁéﬁ?ﬁﬂzzfﬂ)}%l)\—@ f%@l&ﬁﬁ%ﬂ o LLEEK
FEEHZI EELEFTHER — 5 - AEE S RIRF T
BRZ 2 RLEDBRBAEPRNNOEARREE -
A EREFNBERAEZEN_F “/\i—ﬂ—EIZ
RARARRZMEMRRE - Bt - /xﬁ BLERK -

#HE—FE/F+— F=1—HF4¥/Z For the year ended 31 December 2009

2. Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs (Continued)

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) Borrowing Costs

HKAS 27 (Amendments) Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or an Associate

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Share-based Payment - Vesting Conditions
and Cancellations

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HK(IFRIC) - Int 15 Agreements for Construction of Real Estate

Various Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2008

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the new HKFRSs had no
material impact on how the results and financial position for the current
and prior periods have been prepared and presented.

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of financial statements

The adoption of HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) makes certain changes to
the format and titles of the primary financial statements and to the
presentation of some items within these statements. It also gives rise to
additional disclosures. The measurement and recognition of the Group's
assets, liabilities, income and expenses is unchanged. However, some
items that were recognised directly in equity are now recognised in other
comprehensive income, for example exchange difference on translation of
financial statements of foreign operations. HKAS 1 affects the presentation
of owner changes in equity and introduces a “Statement of comprehensive
income”. Comparatives have been restated to conform with the
revised standard. The Group has applied changes to its accounting
polices on presentation of financial statements and segment reporting
retrospectively. However, the changes to the comparatives have not
affected the consolidated or the Company'’s statement of financial position

at 1 January 2008 and accordingly these statements are not presented.
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2. Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs (Continued)

HKAS 27 (Amendments) Cost of an investment in a subsidiary, jointly
controlled entity or an associate

The amendment requires the investor to recognise dividends from a
subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or associate in profit or loss irrespective
the distributions are out of the investee’s pre-acquisition or post-
acquisition reserves. In prior years, the Company recognised dividends
out of pre-acquisition reserves as a recovery of its investment in the
subsidiaries, jointly controlled entity or associates (i.e. a reduction of the
cost of investment). Only dividends out of post-acquisition reserves were

recognised as income in profit or loss.

Under the new accounting policy, if the dividend distribution is excessive,
the investment would be tested for impairment according to the

Company's accounting policy on impairment of non-financial assets.

The new accounting policy has been applied prospectively as required by
these amendments to HKAS 27 and therefore no comparatives have been

restated.

HKFRS 8 Operating segments

The adoption of HKFRS 8 has not affected the identified and reportable
operating segments for the Group. However, reported segment
information is now based on internal management reporting information
that is regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker. In
the previous annual financial statements, segments were identified by
reference to the dominant source and nature of the Group’s risks and
returns. Comparatives have been restated on a basis consistent with the
new standard.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, certain new and
amended HKFRSs have been published but are not effective, and have not
been adopted early by the Group.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) anticipate that all of the
pronouncements will be adopted in the Group's accounting policy for
the first period beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement.
Information on new and amended HKFRSs that are expected to have
impact on the Group's accounting policies is provided below. Certain other
new and amended HKFRSs have been issued but are not expected to have
a material impact of the Group's financial statements.
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B2 —TZNF+ = H=+—HIF/Z For the year ended 31 December 2009

2. Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 3 Business combinations (Revised 2008)

The standard is applicable in reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009 and will be applied prospectively. The new standard still requires the
use of the purchase method (now renamed as the acquisition method)
but introduces material changes to the recognition and measurement
of consideration transferred and the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities, and the measurement of non-controlling interests (previously
known as minority interest) in the acquiree. The new standard is expected
to have a significant effect on business combinations occurring in
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

The standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013 and addresses the classification and measurement of
financial assets. The new standard reduces the number of measurement
categories of financial assets and all financial assets will be measured at
either amortised cost or fair value based on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics
of the financial asset. Fair value gains and losses will be recognised in
profit or loss except for those on certain equity investments which will be
presented in other comprehensive income. The Directors are currently
assessing the possible impact of the new standard on the Group's results
and financial position in the first year of application.

HKAS 27 Consolidated and separate financial statements (Revised 2008)

The revised standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2009 and introduces changes to the accounting requirements
for the loss of control of a subsidiary and for changes in the Group's interest
in subsidiaries. Total comprehensive income must be attributed to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. The Directors do not expect the standard to have
a material effect on the Group's financial statements.
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2. Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs (Continued)

Annual improvements 2009

The HKICPA has issued Improvements to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards 2009. Most of the amendments become effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010. The Directors expect that the
amendment to HKAS 17 Leases to be relevant to the Group's accounting
policies. Prior to the amendment, HKAS 17 generally required a lease of
land to be classified as an operating lease. The amendment requires a
lease of land to be classified as an operating or finance lease in accordance
with the general principles in HKAS 17. The Group will need to reassess
the classification of its unexpired leases of land as at 1 January 2010 on the
basis of information existing at the inception of those leases in accordance
with the transitional provisions for the amendment. The amendment
will apply retrospectively except where the necessary information is not
available. In that situation, the leases will be assessed on the date when the
amendment is adopted. The Directors are currently assessing the possible
impact of the amendment on the Group's results and financial position in

the first year of application.

. Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of these financial statements are summarised below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented
unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and
the impacts on the Group's financial statements, if any, are disclosed in

note 2.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis except for the revaluation of investment properties which are
stated at fair values. The measurement bases are fully described in the

accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions
are used in preparation of the financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management's best knowledge and
judgement of current events and actions, actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation

(c)

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December each year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are excluded from consolidation from
the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on
transactions between group companies are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Where unrealised losses on
intra-group asset sales are reversed on consolidation, the underlying
asset is also tested for impairment from the Group's perspective.
Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have
been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the
accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose entities) over
which the Group has the power to control the financial and operating
policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group

controls another entity.

In consolidated financial statements, acquisition of subsidiaries (other
than those under common control) is accounted for by applying
the purchase method. This involves the estimation of fair value of all
identifiable assets and liabilities, including contingent liabilities of
the subsidiary, at the acquisition date, regardless of whether or not
they were recorded in the financial statements of the subsidiary prior
to acquisition. On initial recognition, the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position at their fair values, which are also used as the bases for
subsequent measurement in accordance with the Group's accounting

policies.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, subsidiaries are
carried at cost less any impairment loss unless the subsidiary is held
for sale or included in a disposal group. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable at the reporting date. All dividends whether received out
of the investee’s pre or post-acquisition profits are recognised in the
Company'’s profit or loss.

Foreign currency translation

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated entities,
foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined and are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual financial
statements of foreign operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency, have been
converted into RMB. Assets and liabilities have been translated into
RMB at the closing rates at the reporting date. Income and expenses
have been converted into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates, or at the average rates over the reporting period
provided that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any
differences arising from this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in the foreign

currency translation reserve in equity.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are
reclassified from equity to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on

sale.
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Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided to write
off the cost less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings 4.5%-5% or the lease term,
whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements 20% or the lease term,

whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 6%-10%
Motor vehicles 18%-20%
Furniture, fixtures and 18%-20%

office equipment

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents leasehold buildings and plant
and machinery under construction, which is stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation begins when the
relevant assets are available for use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
costs, such as repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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() L HEEHE (f) Prepaid land lease payments
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Upfront payments made to acquire land held under an operating lease
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The determination if an arrangement is or contains
a lease and if the lease is an operating lease is detailed in note 3(m).
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line method over the term
of the lease/right of use except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits to be derived by the
Group from use of the land.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or
held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being constructed or developed for

future use as investment property.

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the interest is
classified and accounted for as an investment property on a property-
by-property basis. Any such property interest which has been classified
as an investment property is accounted for as if it were held under a
finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is stated at fair value, unless it is
still in the course of construction or development at the reporting
date and its fair value cannot be reliably determined at that time. Fair
value is determined by external professional valuers, with sufficient
experience with respect to both the location and the nature of
the investment property. The carrying amounts recognised at the
reporting date reflect the prevailing market conditions at the reporting
date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the fair value or the sale
of an investment property are included in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(h) Research and development activities

(i)

Cost associated with research activities are expensed in profit or loss
as they occur. Costs that are directly attributable to development
activities are recognised as intangible assets provided they meet the
following recognition requirement:

(i) demonstration of technical feasibility of the prospective product
for internal use or sale;

(i) there is intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;

(i) the Group's ability to use or sell the intangible asset is
demonstrated;

(iv) the intangible asset will generate probable economic benefits
through internal use or sale;

(v) sufficient technical, financial and other resources are available for
completion; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can be reliably
measured.

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on development
activities along with an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.
The costs of development of internally generated software, products
or knowhow that meet the above recognition criteria are recognised
as intangible assets. They are subject to the same subsequent

measurement method as acquired intangible assets.

All other development costs are expensed as incurred.

Financial assets

Financial assets of the Group are classified into loans and receivables.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition depending on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates
this designation at every reporting date.
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(i) BIBEE (&) (i) Financial assets (Continued)
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All financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value,
plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments expire or are transferred and
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership have been

transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to assess whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, impairment loss is determined and recognised based on the
classification of the financial asset.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Loans
and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment losses. Amortised
cost is calculated taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction cost.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to determine
whether there is any objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial assets
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

- Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- Abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

— It becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; and

- Significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

1)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets include observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from the group of financial assets. Such observable
data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the payment
status of debtors in the group and, national or local economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the group.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). The amount of the loss
is recognised in profit or loss of the period in which the impairment

occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that it does not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset exceeding what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in
profit or loss of the period in which the reversal occurs.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated cost of completion and applicable selling
expenses. Cost is determined using the weighted average basis, and
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprise direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads,

and where appropriate, subcontracting charges.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(k) Cash and cash equivalents

0}

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand, demand
deposits with banks and short term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant

risk of changes in value.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include bank borrowings, trade and
bills payable and other payables. They are included in line items in the
statement of financial position as bank borrowings under current and
non-current liabilities, trade and bills payable and other payables.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All interest related
charges are recognised in accordance with the Group's accounting

policy for borrowing costs (see note 3(t)).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligations under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amount
is recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting date.
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Trade, bills and other payables

Trade, bills and other payables are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.

(m) Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,
is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period
of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
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() FEEAHEZEEZE

(ii)

REERBER BN A EBARHD R K EH
EERTAKEZEE  DEAEREMERA - X
SR T 2 B D R K M RS R T AR E
HE - 2 BEREETEE - ATHBERBISN :

REEHERANNENTRRENEZES - Al
ZERNMESIBRIRENE - WEDBRRIREY
¥ ARTAERESEBERERAERR (R
ftEE3(9)

BEHE B (TERFHN)

WAREEERERRCEHERG2EE  RIBR3E
FREEEEZEANERHEATARREZ S
—5E% DRREBEESHER  NFSREEHNE
REENBERTMG - k2 HEREER - &
EREHNAENRFELE L EBH O NMEER
TR - IAHSRE R A Z et BRNE sk
HBR ©

legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Group are classified as operating leases, with the following

exceptions:

Property held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property is classified as
an investment property on a property-by-property basis and, if
classified as investment property, is accounted for as if held under

a finance lease (see note 3(g)).

(i) Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use the assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line method over the lease terms
except where an alternative basis is more representative of the
time pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rental
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.



B % % 3 Bff 5

Notes to the Financial Statements
R - FENF A+ = H=+—HIF/Z For the year ended 31 December 2009
3. TESFTHEREE (&)

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) & (&) (m) Leases (Continued)
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(iii) Assets leased out under operating leases as the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are measured and
presented according to the nature of the assets. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the rental

income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line method over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as

income in the accounting period in which they are earned.

(n) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can
be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Group are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course of the allocation
of purchase price to the assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combination. They are initially measured at fair value at the date of
acquisition and subsequently measured at the higher of the amount
that would be recognised in a comparable provision as described
above and the amount initially recognised less any accumulated
amortisaton, if appropriate.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is determined
using the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares are
deducted from share premium (net of any related income tax benefits)
to the extent that they are incremental cost directly attributable to the

equity transaction.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods and the use by others of the Group's
assets yielding interest. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,

can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of the significant risks and
rewards of ownership to the customer. This is usually taken as the time
when the goods are delivered and the customer has accepted the
goods.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by
the lease terms. Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are earned.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(q) Government grants

(r)

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants
are deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that the grants are intended to
compensate. Government grants relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment are included in liabilities as deferred income in
the statement of financial position and are recognised in profit or loss

on a straight-line method over the expected lives of the related assets.

Government grants relating to income is presented in gross under
“Other income” in the income statement.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, prepaid land lease payments and

investments in subsidiaries are subject to impairment testing.

All these assets are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the asset's carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting
market conditions less costs to sell, and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessment of time value of money and the rise specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent from those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of
assets that generate cash inflow independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit). As a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment
and some are tested at cash-generating unit level.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount
and only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount than would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been

recognised.
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(s) ESHEF (s) Employee benefits
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Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through defined

contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit plan
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees who are eligible to participate in the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the

employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in the PRC
are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by

the local municipal government.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
employees render services during the year. The Group's obligations
under these plans are limited to the fixed percentage contributions

payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the

reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave and

maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based employee compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-based compensation plans
to certain employees and a supplier. All employee services received
in exchange for the grant of any share-based compensation are
measured at their fair values. These are indirectly determined by
reference to the equity instruments awarded. Their value is appraised
at the grant date and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth targets).
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(s) ESHEF (&) (s) Employee benefits (Continued)
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Share-based employee compensation (Continued)

All share-based compensation is recognised as an expense in profit or
loss over the vesting period if vesting conditions apply, or recognised
as an expense in full at the grant date when the equity instruments
granted vest immediately unless the compensation qualifies for
recognition as asset, with a corresponding increase in the share-based
payment reserve in equity. If vesting conditions apply, the expense
is recognised over the vesting period, based on the best available
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of equity instruments that are expected to vest. Estimates
are subsequently revised, if there is any indication that the number of

equity instruments expected to vest differs from previous estimates.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to share premium. After vesting date, when the vested
share options are later forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share-based payment

reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

For shares transferred to an employee of the Company by the ultimate
holding company of the Company, the fair value of services received

AREMEE @ WAERFIRE B B 5 & FR I % is determined by reference to the fair value of shares granted at the
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for shares granted to an employee with non-market performance
vesting conditions, the Group revises its estimates of the number of
shares that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision
of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition, construction or
production of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period
of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(t)

(u)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying asset
when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale are being undertaken. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.

Accounting for income tax

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those obligations
to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior
reporting period, that are unpaid at the reporting date. They are
calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the
year. All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a
component of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on temporary
differences at the reporting date between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and their respective
tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
for all deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to be
carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary
differences, will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.



72 KB TERBRAR TIANDE CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

B 5 ¥R R MY R

Notes to the Financial Statements

EtE —FEZ N F+— H=+1—HIFF/Z For the year ended 31 December 2009

3. FESTBEME (F&) 3. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

() FrEH 2t m% (&)

BIEFIANEHTER - WEHTE R ARBREE 2 HfH
ERMRERE AR BRI ABEM I BRAE -

BEFIREERBE 2 BB MRk ER - fWEn
HEt2Eam sk A B & RS AZIBE AR - RlR
HAl 2 et sk B RN R #ERR o

BNEATIIRE E R ATIE B ERERN U TERIANFES

51 :

(@) ANERBEREERFINTENBCERSRLH &

(o) FHEAFRELEETARFREREENETAE -

REBRENATERAFE R REHIAE ZE HIRT

HIEAE -

(@) ZEBLORHRGNITRR KA IR E A AR
MIRAEHE &

(b) MEIEFHIRE E SRR IR B B BN R — 5
FEUA T AR — IR AR BV S B

() F—FERBIER X

(i) FHBINBERIRAE (MIRHER PR AR A
B M E R RRHEIE R TE B e B 2 ) AT
EEENRHIR A EREENRRKEREER
ERABNTRERTER -

(u) Accounting for income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period the liability is settled or the asset
realised, provided they are enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss, or in other comprehensive income or directly in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited to other comprehensive

income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in net if, and

only if,

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and

(b) it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and

settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities in

net if, and only if,

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.
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3. TESHBEME(E)

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(v) 7EBEE (v) Segmentreporting

AABTEREERERAMLITEER - RS
REBEBERADWERDEMORE + AR PRSI
WREERMBONRE - MARERREZEEHE S
REDHLREN AR - AXARARTEZTHEZA
B ERRBARE D - DIKBAEE 2 T REM
K ARG R M E

FEBEEE DA TAI2HE

() RZEBEREERER % SLERHERLER

HERHEM ;

(i) BRER: % REREEEEER

(i) RLBERETFER : 1%  SLERHER LB R
H N Em

BAA R THEER : iE  WERHEBAAH
e THEEmR &

(iv.

(v) HibEIER  HEEMBEIER @ fImET -

ElEREDBEIFERE - RESBEERMRFHE
RFTHR R EIRA RIS HERE T I THER © FrA 2 B
BRI N T BT -

RERERER BRI TS 2R 8 SRR IR E D AP SR P
KA EBEK - BREBEEEVBREEARENT B
RRATERARAER - HELA TP

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors of the Company for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group’s business components
and for their review of the performance of those components. The
business components in the internal financial information reported to
the executive directors of the Company are determined following the
Group's major products and service lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable segments:

() Cyanoacetic acid and its esters products: Research and
development, manufacture and sale of cyanoacetic acid and its

esters products;

(i) Alcohols products: Research and development, manufacture and

sale of alcohols products;

(i) Chloroacetic acid and its derivatives products: Research and
development, manufacture and sale of chloroacetic acid and its

derivatives products;

(iv) Fine petrochemical products: Research and development,
manufacture and sale of fine petrochemical products; and

(v) Other by-products: Sale of other by-products, e.g. steam.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each of
the products and service lines requires different resources as well as
marketing approaches. All inter-segment transfers are carried out at
arms length prices.

The measurement policies the Group used for reporting segment
results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in its financial
statements prepared under HKFRSs, except that:
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3. FESTBEME (F&) 3. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(v) 7EPEE (H)

— UEOXNZRsER2ER

- ﬂ%%k HERAK » RIZEMZERBNRAER

E\

— WIEARZEDBEREMNL ZEBEENEERA
KX

RETERED BHKE AR T I EIEERA -
DEEEBERREMEIAIIMBEE 1) - WIHE

MREDPEREE 2 EREHNEXEE (TZER
RAEEEE) LN DBEEDE ©

DEABETBRLIHEARE N ARG 2 EEE
Wm%ﬁﬁ' NEREEDE - WIHEREMERA
S mElEh ZEER AR E - AR RYRIEELEE
MSRIEECES -

I R A] 2 3R ) BPER AR FEH A A D AL o

(w) BEZEAL

AAFBHMERME - MBATER  —HAEREAEE
ZEREAL

() ZAREIBEB—FRIZRPNEE - BRI

M$E@@Q$EIZ%%&&%ﬁﬁﬁikw
& o A AEESI AR E

(i) ASERIEI L% 07 SRR

(v) Segment reporting (Continued)

- expenses related to share-based payments

- rental income, rental costs and fair value gains related to

investment property

- finance costs

— income tax

- corporate income and expenses which are not directly attributable
to the business activities of any operating segment

are not included in arriving at the operating results of the operating

segment.

Segment assets include all assets except investment properties. In
addition, corporate assets which are not directly attributable to the
business activities of any operating segment are not allocated to a

segment, which primarily applies to the Group's headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating segment and
are not allocated to a segment. These include deferred tax liabilities
attributable to investment properties and the Group’s headquarters,
and borrowings undertaken specifically to fund the acquisition of

these assets.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to reportable

segments.

(w) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to
be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise significant
influence over the Group in making financial and operating policy

decisions, or has joint control over the Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common control;
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3. IERETHRME (A
(w) BREAL ()

(i) ZARRKREZHEASIAREEREEFZAER
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A LTIES EHsKEATE B 5

Vi) A RRAEEREE BRI AEE @S 2 ERE
B2 (B B A= AR 2 BERR AR AR -

BRALZERR RN B RTAMN B AT B B
FEINLTHZZALTEZR EEJZE

x) FnBEEEHFERIFIFFERE

FRBEECHBEAKEHFEEE  LREAERDA
EHREEXANERETREESIR  REEEIER
BREHERZEE 228 M RBEEERZE
E o

FHEFEIERBEE ORERIRAERGRER - HEF
mé)ﬁééﬂ BREAREFEEENRREZEMRINE
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B E —FF N F+ = H=+—HFF/Z For the year ended 31 December 2009
3. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

(w) Related parties (Continued)

(iii) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in which

the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent, or a close family member of such
an individual, or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred to in (i) or is
an entity under the control, joint control or significant influence of
such individuals; or

—_
<

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the
benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that is a related
party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that individual in
their dealings with the entity.

(x) Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale and stated at
the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell if their
carrying amount is recovered principally through a sale transaction

rather than through a continuing use.

Impairment losses on non-current assets held for sale are recognised in
profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset is classified as held for sale
or is included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale, the
non-current asset is not depreciated or amortised.

4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future

events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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4. ERGTHE R A M (&)
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4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal

the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have

a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

discussed below:

(i)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for the Group's property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation
charge where useful lives are different to those previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or

non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Fair value less costs to sell for a piece of land and property, plant and
equipment erected thereon

On 12 June 2008, Shandong Weifang Economic Development
Zone Planning and Construction Bureau issued a resumption
notice to Weifang Common Chem Co., Ltd. #5RI %/ 2ER
A7 (“Weifang Common”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, in respect of the resumption of land use rights of
three pieces of land (collectively referred to as the “Land”, which
include “Land 1", “Land 2" and “Land 3") in which the removal of
Land 2 and Land 3 was substantially completed and the removal

of Land 1 was still in progress as at 31 December 2009.

In determining the fair value less costs to sell, management made
the best estimate by the expected amount of compensation
that was still under negotiation between Weifang Common
and Shandong government authorities and by reference to the
compensations for Land 2 and Land 3.
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FE 2 BEARAEAERFEMNE P 2 BIEE -
FEZASFFETINAEEBBIET 2G5S
B REFERRAREERX - 2 bt 2 RIE
B AT R BLE N $E & R E < BB  (F
H - AR E A R B T E R ARIR A 7T
FBHMRBTBMAEE S - NEEKNSER
& RS A AR LA -

ET AR IHER RS XA R bR o HBRZ
ERAREREZGEGTR  ZE2ENeYEFE
ZBREE R AR 2E) 2 SR 2 BE S, -

4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Estimated fair values of investment properties

The Group appointed a firm of independent professional valuers to
assess the fair values of the investment properties. In determining
the fair values, the valuers has utilised a method of valuation
which involves certain estimates. The Directors have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the method of valuation is

reflective of the current market conditions.

Inventory valuation

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expense. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of manufacturing
and selling products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor actions
in response to severe industry cycles. The Group will reassess the

estimates by each reporting date.

The assessment of the estimated net realisable value involves
judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of inventories and write-down/reversal of write-

down in the period in which such estimate has been changed.
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5. 2 HER 5. Segment information
ARAHITERTEBAEB 2 ARNERMREERE AL The executive directors of the Company have identified the Group's five
EOE - FHBERMFE W) products and services lines as operating segments as further described in
note 3(v).
I ELE D RIREHABR S B EHEEER - MEBRE These operating segments are monitored and strategic decisions are made
IR A — A - on the basis of adjusted segment operating resullts.
“BENE
2009
BIBR 8ZBR
HEEER HTHER L]
Cyanoacetic Chloroacetic LIEER it
acidand BEER acidand Fine BER
its esters Alcohols itsderivatives  petrochemical Other S
products products products products by-products Total
ARBT R AR®T R ARETR ARETTR ARBTR AR®TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Wigs Revenue:
REMRER From external customers 515,512 55,423 1,159 26,119 734 598,947
PEE e Inter-segment revenue - 27,385 98,495 4 24,942 150,826
2HA B WaE Reportable seqment revenue 515,512 82,808 99,654 26,123 25,676 749,773
A2EsH 2R/ (BB Reportable segment profit/(loss) 77,168 4,907 20,805 (1,962) 4,149 105,067
nE - BERENE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 17,264 776 4,369 2,037 6,004 30,450
HEGEEEZNERFE Write-down of inventories to net realisable value 3 - - 233 - 266
EEFEERR Reversal of write-down of inventories to
2REE net realisable value 29 ) 374 992 157 1,59
2R P EE Reportable segment assets 252,210 26,897 43,938 41,167 79,989 444,201
BN HEE Additions to non-current segment assets 38,979 224 10,664 512 1,098 51477

2HHP Ak Reportable seqment liabilties 36975 10,568 8,334 27,922 3,778 87,577
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5. EPER (F) 5. Segment information (Continued)
e & J](:3
2008
ALER %L&&
AlEEm A THER Eray
Cyanoacetic Chloroacetic L THEm Htth
acid and ERER acid and Fine AER
its esters Alcohols its derivatives  petrochemical Other B
products products products products by-products Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
Wigs Revenue:
REHRZP From external customers 621,702 73293 645 26,171 3388 725,199
PEE 2 WE Inter-segment revenue - 20351 119272 8 27523 167,154
BELiv Reportable segment revenue 621,702 93644 119917 26,179 30911 892353
A2RAP2EH/(B8) Reportable segment profit/(loss) 71343 11,663 29017 (3081) (9921) 99,021
nE - R REE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 15,939 781 3407 2038 5628 27793
RETEEEZIERFE Write-clown of inventories to net realisable value 29 93 607 1,103 157 1,989
2R P EE Reportable segment assets 285817 14277 35,841 43561 77762 457,258
BRI HEE Additions to non-current segment assets 14422 2 10921 ) 3238 28625
NEHABBE Reportable seqment liabilities 4347 20614 14,648 30,150 6126 113,885
* WEREFEEEFOBUNEABHSHI 5K - ¥ Comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current period

presentation.

b7 £ B 40 A% S SR FT 2 51| 2 4% T8 48 B B B T R 3E R 2 51 i The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments reconcile to the

INEE S ER SR ENT Group's key financial figures as presented in the financial statements as
follows:

—BENE —EE)E

2009 2008

AR¥TT ARBFIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

A 2355 262 Was Reportable segment revenues 749,773 892,353

R EH D BB 2 W zs Elimination of inter-segment revenues (150,826) (167,154)

B Group revenues 598,947 725,199
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5.

DERE R () 5. Segment information (Continued)

—EENE —EENF

2009 2008

ARET T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

A 2D 7625 F Reportable segment profit 105,067 99,021
EYERS KA Rental income from investment properties 186 398
EYEEH R Revaluation gain on investment properties 490 660
AR D A B T 2 SRIEF Employee share-based payment expenses (1,371) (1,508)
2 DN Finance costs (10,304) (13,380)
HE MR EED BL 2 A Other unallocated income 1,458 579
BT eni 2 Other unallocated expenses (27,041) (35,658)
R D 2P 2 S 7 Elimination of inter-segment profit (25,630) (23,545)
Rk PS5 i & 7 Profit before income tax 42,855 26,567
—EThE —EENE

2009 2008

ARETT ARET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

A2FD ez EE Reportable segment assets 444,201 457,258
TEf b EFRIE Prepaid land lease payments 59,173 66,457
"EMH Investment properties 10,850 10,360
R IEE E Deferred tax assets 355 826
MENBIIEE E Current tax assets 3,708 1,963
EREAREGEZIERDEE Non-current assets classified as held for sale 3,647 =
HihbEEE Other corporate assets 116,148 103,861
EEEE Group assets 638,082 640,725
—genE  —2T)\F

2009 2008

ARET T ARBT T

RMB’000 RMB'000

AIE2FsEzalE Reportable segment liabilities 87,577 113,885
RITEE Bank borrowings 149,169 159,614
BLEHEBE Deferred tax liabilities 1,988 1,816
HivbEEE Other corporate liabilities 11,400 16,479
L= Group liabilities 250,134 291,794
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5. 2 HER () 5. Segment information (Continued)

)

AEEREHINEF 2 WamEl 5 A THE The Group's revenues from external customers are divided into the
following geographical areas:

—EBEBhEF —EENEF

2009 2008

ARBTT ARBFTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

B (i) PRC (domicile) 513,158 581,421
=y Taiwan 9,518 27335
ENE India 10,543 32,281
B Ireland 12,659 16,454
<35l United Kingdom 9,863 14,862
HAl Others 43,206 52,846
598,947 725,199

FEREZMBEESIREY X ERAELE - ARERIER The geographical location of customers is based on the location at which
BEBRANPE  HESRIZESD 2 IFRBEE ° the goods delivered. No geographical location of the non-current assets is

presented as the substantial non-current assets are physically based in the
PRC.
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6. EEHRHEMKA 6. Turnover and other income
REE Y B D RS 27 R - A The Group's principal activities are disclosed in note 27 to the financial
B Aty ARz S 0 A o AR B R U AR E AU A statements. Turnover of the Group is the revenue from these activities.
EENDRERNT Revenue from the Group's principal activities and other income recognised
during the year are as follows:
—EThE ZEENF
2009 2008
AR¥TT ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
EER Turnover
SHE S B8 R B AR E Sales of cyanoacetic acid and its esters products 515,512 621,702
SHER EE M Sales of alcohols products 55,423 73,293
HERALBRE THFER Sales of chloroacetic acid and its derivatives products 1,159 645
SHERMAA ML THER Sales of fine petrochemical products 26,119 26,171
HEEMEIESR Sales of other by-products 734 3,388
598,947 725,199
Hebg A Other income
HEFEN RSB R Gain on disposals of prepaid land lease payments
Y% - BB ke and property, plant and equipment, net 494 =
T G Government grants 165 117
REESHA AT R 2 B 75 Interest income on financial assets
BEFEWHA stated at amortised cost 289 427
PEIEW AL O] (I 5E 24) Release of deferred income (note 24) 2,740 2,740
WA Rental income 186 398
R Exchange gain - 91
HA A Sundry income 435 806
4,309 4579
. WA 7. Finance costs
—genE  —2T)\F
2009 2008
ARET ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
ATEBEZMERX Interest charges on:
RAFANEHEEREZBITER Bank loans wholly repayable within five years 10,107 11,584
BRIR =R Discounted bills 197 1,796

10,304 13,380
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—EENF ZEENEF
2009 2008
ARBET T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BATSRATEF B (GEA) Profit before income tax is arrived
at after charging/(crediting):
BEME (FzE11) Directors' remuneration (note 11)
—#% ~ Fees 282 285
— ¥ K2R, — Salaries and allowances 2,488 2416
—RIREFIET B — Retirement benefit scheme contributions 52 40
2,822 2,741
HAth 8 TR Other staff costs 25,607 23918
RIREAET B Retirement benefit scheme contributions 1,691 1,558
i sEE AR S 2 BB Equity-settled share-based payments expenses 1,371 1,508
B8 TR Total staff costs 31,491 29,725
ZE AN S Auditors’ remuneration 399 673
TEAS A b & TR IE 8 Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments 1,417 1,435
BRRRAZZFE Cost of inventories recognised
PR (FI5E) « 895 as an expense (note), including 495,515 618,856
—BIEFEEEER#EFE — Write-down of inventories to net realisable value 266 1,989
= @%ﬁﬁ{&ztﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬁ — Reversal of write-down of
AR A inventories to net realisable value (1,594)
e Jﬁﬁb‘%& SRz ITE Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 35,960 33,080
FRIE M8k Exchange losses, net 212 1,958
HAtb e GRIB R B & 18 Impairment loss on other receivables
(EBEEEMEERATT) (included in other operating expenses) - 1,790
EARE L RIEFH Minimum lease payments under operating leases
KERE T EAEHIE in respect of leasehold land and building 566 407
TEMFEREZ Outgoings in respect of investment properties 108 104
RBEEE Provision of removal expenses
(EBEEEMEERATS) (included in other operating expenses) - 3,400
=0 Research costs 648 543
2 ZEWERRERE Impairment loss on trade receivables 203 -

MisE : FEMRATBIEARK 30449000 L(ZTTNF : ARK
27,793,00070) BB ER S R ARY 21,321,000 (=TT

& AR 20,261,0007T) BB E TR o staff costs.

REZFEBESBEARKE 15940007 (ZFF/N\F : H)E
HED - FRRARFENTSERE_STNFEQT -

Note: Cost of inventories includes RMB30,449,000 (2008: RMB27,793,000) relating to
depreciation expenses and RMB21,321,000 (2008: RMB20,261,000) relating to

The write-down of inventories of RMB1,594,000 (2008: Nil) was reversed as the
market price of these inventories was increased in 2009.
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9. FIEHRX

9. Income tax expense

—EENF —EENF

2009 2008

ARBET T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

BNEAFHIE — R B (> ZEFTISHL Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax 168 1,583
RAERIE (PFiEE17) Deferred tax (note 17) 643 59
811 1,642

FRISH S H BEER B AR M SR AR B RIS B R 2 T8 2

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the profit before

HERAAT - income tax multiplied by the PRC enterprise income tax rate is as follows:
—EThE ZEENF
2009 2008
AR¥T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
KR PSR AT A Profit before income tax 42,855 26,567
AR ZE AT S B =R 25% Tax at PRC enterprise income
(ZZENF : 25%) tax rate of 25% (2008: 25%) 10,714 6,642
DAY 2 g2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 3,241 574
REEBAUARIFERERS Tax effect of prior year's unrecognised
THISEE 2 B & tax losses utilised this year (17) (3,100)
RIERLRERE 2 MBS 28 Tax effect of temporary difference not recognised 123 =
RIERTIEE R 2 B2 Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised - 850
I EPNGIVE S5 Effect of tax exemption and
RIS ER 2 concession granted to subsidiaries (13,765) (3,403)
Hith Others 515 79
PSRtz Income tax expense 811 1,642

BRAERE 2 WAL SFERBELERRE R - HALE

HEBFISTHEME -

REZZEE=F 1A HEREDBEEESE63RRE
R BEAEMBEE(T#MTUE]D - R-BTELFE+ AKX
B - FEBEGRE QM T HRAB RG] (BRG] - 1R
BRTEREREN > §=-FF
TS HRE 24 25% (FNERMEAI B EERD) °

NFE—RA—BENERE

income neither arises in nor derives from Hong Kong.

No provision for Hong Kong Profit Tax has been made as the Group's

On 16 March 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the PRC on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “New Tax Law") by Order No. 63 of the President of
the PRC. On 6 December 2007, the State Council of the PRC issued
Implementation Regulations of the New Tax Law (the “Implementation
Regulations”). The applicable enterprise income tax rate under the New Tax

Law and the Implementation Regulations was changed to 25% (before any

preferential concession) starting from 1 January 2008.
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9. FriSRipAx ()

BIERA R EIERECEMINE B EMERE - 5
SRR EMERES0%EATE - MAETREA
—REERMTEE  ER-_TTN\FEZHGEESR  EXR
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EEEMETER AR ([ B&EsL]) AR BB HRAED
BEMRFN _ZTNER T N\FHRRLEMEH
TR D Bl A 20% 2 18% °

BREERBOERER - B2 AR AR (41
D) R ESAME TER AR ([EHEE )98 &%
BEHEETRBARBBES - 2RARRBER T
AAHERENFEEETEREMBAFEMEH - £k
=FBAIZ50%EARERE - AR _TENFR_TZN
FORABEIMLE = A REMERNFE - SUARRHR
BEERERNEEHRERA125% - HR T N\EFR_-F
SNFEDR AR EEE —EARE_EEFFE - nJ&ER
RFTSE - BT ERATE SR P BRI EAISHIERE o

HYDBBRSBFMA - WERALESHERTR B
ETHRERCBEMEREZ FERREERE - ZMBER
“ETRNFERBECHRA - HREETRA_TTLF
TZA=+—BEAKETK  HAKREREEEENE
RERBEERARERN - BRBARBERGEZFE
AT IR ©

10. QBB AELERF

ARalHEB ANEEERE &M AR 42,044,000 T (ZZFZ /)N
F: AR®24,9250007T) « HAmFIARE1,4200007T (=
T )\ : B AR 13482,0007T) EFEARA B Z B &Rk
FRIER

B2 —TZNF+ = H=+—HIF/Z For the year ended 31 December 2009

. Income tax expense (Continued)

Weifang Common, as an advance technology enterprise, was granted
a tax concession for 2008 at a preferential rate of 12.5% pursuant to the
old Income Tax Law of the PRC on Enterprises with Foreign Investment
and Foreign Enterprises, which provides that an enterprise engaging
in advance technology business was entitled to 50% reduction of the
applicable tax rate. Weifang Common is subject to PRC Enterprise Income
Tax at the rate of 25% for 2009.

Shanghai Dehong Chemical Company Limited /&f&5,t THR A F]
("Shanghai Dehong") is subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax at the rate of
20% and 18% for 2009 and 2008 respectively, being the preferential tax rate
in Shanghai Pudong New District.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, Weifang Parasia
Chem Co,, Ltd. M (LEBFR AR (‘Weifang Parasia”) and Weifang
Binhai Petro-Chem Co., Ltd. #¥& B AM{IETIHERAFR (“Weifang
Binhai") are eligible for certain tax holidays and concessions in the PRC. The
tax holiday and concessions are in the form of two years tax exemption
from the first profitable year, followed by a 50% reduction of the applicable
tax rate in the following three years. PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been
provided for Weifang Parasia at the preferential rate of 12.5% for 2008
and 2009 as these are the third and forth profitable years respectively. No
provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been provided for Weifang
Binhai for 2008 and 2009 as these are the first and second profitable years
respectively and tax being exempted.

A government grant obtained by Weifang Binhai for subsidising
the construction of the production lines and ancillary facilities for
manufacturing of high purity isobutylene, polyisobuylene and chloro
acetic acid which was recognised as a deferred income in 2006. As the
construction has been completed as at 31 December 2007, the deferred
income commenced to release to income over the useful lives of the
relevant assets. Such income is taxable for the year in which it is released to
profit or loss.

10.Profit attributable to the owners of the Company

Of the consolidated profit attributable to the owners of the Company of
RMB42,044,000 (2008: RMB24,925,000), a profit of RMB1,420,000 (2008: a
loss of RMB13,482,000) has been dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company.
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NESMERSREEEFHH

11.Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

(a) EFM= (a) Directors’ emoluments
BUEEMSAT : The emoluments of each director were as follows:
BATEAR
T &R
E2 0 )59=4-1 Retirement
Salaries benefit
e and scheme &%
Fees allowances contributions Total
AR¥TT AR¥T T AR¥T T AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ZBEhF 2009
HITES Executive directors
2tz Liu Hongliang - 751 13 764
FFI Wang Zijiang - 579 13 592
e Guo Xitian - 579 13 592
ZBEK Guo Yucheng - 579 13 592
BYFHTES Independent
non-executive directors
2iRE Leung Kam Wan 106 - - 106
=EE Gao Baoyu 88 - - 88
=3 Liu Chenguang 88 - - 88
—TENFEF Total for 2009 282 2,488 52 2,822
—EENF 2008
HITES Executive directors
Bt Liu Hongliang - 730 10 740
FFI Wang Zijiang - 562 10 572
2% | Guo Xitian = 562 10 572
ZPERL Guo Yucheng - 562 10 572
BYKHTES Independent
non-executive directors
2ERE Leung Kam Wan 107 = = 107
SEE Gao Baoyu 89 - = 89
2= Liu Chenguang 89 - = 89
—ZENFAF Total for 2008 285 2416 40 2,741

RAFERN » NEEEAZEEMEFABE @ (EA0
AREE 7 RESRERAHE (CTT\F &) -

RAFERN » WERERLHREEFTEERRKR BN
REMBM (—FTNF : &) ©

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any Directors as an

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for

loss of office during the year (2008: Nil).

There are no arrangements under which a Director waived or agreed

to waive any emoluments during the year (2008: Nil).
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NESMERESREEETM (E) 11.Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments
(Continued)

(b) ZERBHMA L (b) Five highest paid individuals
AEBSEREMzARALER  OE(ZTT)N\F: The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
—HR)ABES  HBRMFBE RBR EMSHTHR - Eff Group during the year included four (2008: three) Directors whose
—H(ZTBNF : Z8) ATRAFEZHBIOT emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The

emoluments payable to the remaining one (2008: two) individuals
during the year are as follows:

—EThEF —ETNF
2009 2008
ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
ELRE N K= Bh Basic salaries and allowances 526 1,115
fRFEEFE AR 25 2 BRI X Equity-settled share-based payments expenses 1,071 1,105
RIRE R 2R Retirement benefit scheme contributions 1 21
1,608 2,241
RENBHA LA T E - The emoluments fell within the following bands:
AE
Number of Individuals
—EENF —ETNF
2009 2008
B < &3 [Z] Emolument bands
Z % 1,000,000 7T Nil to HKS 1,000,000 - 1
1,000,001 P& 7TZ 1,500,000 75 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 - -
1,500,001 7 7T £ 2,000,000 78 7T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 1
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1.8 12.Dividends
@ FAFEZKRE : (@) Dividends attributable to the year:
ZEENF —EENEF
2009 2008
ARET ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BORAHARY B BAL L BA% 250781l Proposed final dividend of HK2.50 cents
(ZZZNF : 125%(0) per ordinary share (2008: HK1.25 cents) 8,800 4,400
RIS B EERIRN 2 KRR IR ERBNHTEE 2 The final dividend proposed after the reporting date has not been
BE HERBABE_ZZNFT_A=1+—HILF recognised as a liability at the reporting date, but reflected as an
EZ2RBENDIK appropriation of retained profits for the year ended 31 December 2009.
(b) RARFERERIRN Z BEMBEEEERS (b) Dividends attributable to the previous financial year, approved and
paid during the year:
—EENF —ZETNF
2009 2008
AR¥TF T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BBV REE 2 RBKRE - Final dividend in respect of the previous
B EBAR 1.25 1L financial year, of HK1.25 cents per

(ZFZTN\F 1 1.2550) ordinary share (2008: HK1.25 cents) 4,400 4,481
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13.8REF 13.Earnings per share

AR TS AEEFRERRFTIREA TSR E ¢ The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the owners
of the Company is based on the following data:

—EENF —ETNF
2009 2008
AR¥T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REZ A Profit for the year 42,044 24,925
ZERHE
Number of ordinary shares
—EENF —EENE
2009 2008
FTEERERRENZ Weighted average number of ordinary shares
TR T8 for the purpose of basic earnings per share 400,000,000 400,000,000
BE T N\EN_ZTTNF+_A=1+—"HItFEIE There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the years ended 31
BEESEER  RFREENRTESRESAFNME @ MK December 2009 and 2008 as the outstanding share options were out of the

TEERENTEEENEINGE - money for the purpose of the diluted earnings per share calculation.
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14.9% - BERRE-—SEEEHAT

14.Property, plant and equipment — Group and Company

] Al
Group Company
i B
HENE &R RENE HAR
&E W e Fumiture, fRTE Bt
ET Leasehold Plant and Motor fixtures and Construction il Office
Buildings ~ improvements machinery vehicles equipment in progress Total equipment
ARETT  ARETn  ARETT  ARETr ARETr  ARETn  ARETRr  ARETn
RMBO00 RMBO00 RMB000 RMB00O RMB000 RVBO00 RMBO00 RMBO00
RZEBNE-A-A Asat 1 January 2008
A Cost 95,087 3% 306597 1788 5013 15229 43949 30
2iiE Accumulated depreciation (7589 ) [#110) (501) (204 = (54269) 0
FEFE Net carying amount 87499 13 262487 1287 3169 15229 369684 2
TREHE Net carrying amount
R-ZEN\E-F-A Asat 1 January 2008 87499 13 262487 1,267 3169 15229 369684 i
#m Additions 1507 = 9 = 05 7507 30151 =
ik Depreciation (4447 i (27506) (326) (794 - (33,080) ]
43 Transfer 4413 - 064 - - (27,056) - -
RZZENE+ZA=1-A Asat 31 December 2008 8972 6 258536 %! 2600 15,680 366,755 16
RZEENE+ZB=1-A Asat 31 December 2008
A Cost 101,007 3 330152 1788 5438 15,680 454100 30
ZiEE Accumulated depreciation (12039) 29 (71616) (827) (2839) = (87345) (14)
FEFE Net carrying amount 88972 6 258536 %! 2600 15,680 366755 16
REFE Net carrying amount
R=ZENF-A-A Asat 1 January 2009 8972 6 258536 %! 2600 15,680 366755 16
2 Additions ] - 513 1 440 52547 53794 =
e Disposzls 7700) = (10550) (109 = = (18359) =
& Depreciation (4659 6 (30,197) (299) (7%9) - (35960) )
EANCBBAREGEY Transfer to non-current assets
SEREEE (M) dlassified as held for sale (note 21) 137) = = = = = (137) .
&% Transfer 215 = 8015 = s (t4140) = =
R-BBAFTZA=1T-R  Asat31December 2009 17404 - 20317 804 241 24087 34853 10
RZEEAETA=1-A As at 31 December 2009
B Cost 90691 3% 350592 1791 5878 24087 43074 30
2iENE Accumulated depreciation (1328 (39) 90275) (987) (3637) - (108221) (20)
RERE Net carrying amount 77404 - 260317 804 241 24087 364853 10

REBE 2B FANRHHRORF A 2 EHE T -

AEEERBIEAIMGRITRE ZERZEFREEN S
AR#19,587,000 T (ZZTENFE : AR 30,387,0007T) (Fff

$¥23) o

The Group's buildings are situated on leasehold land under medium-term
in the PRC.

The carrying amount of the Group's buildings pledged as security for the

Group's banking facilities amounted to approximately RMB19,587,000
(2008: RMB30,387,000) (note 23).
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15. 8T HEFTE-£8

15.Prepaid land lease payments — Group

—EENE —EENF
2009 2008
ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
R—A—H As at 1 January 66,457 67,892
k= Disposals (3,597) =
EAEBEARIEREZ Transfer to non-current assets classified
JEmBEAEE (FisE21) as held for sale (note 21) (2,270) =
TEAS L HbFE & R TE S Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments (1,417) (1,435)
R+=ZA=+—H As at 31 December 59,173 66,457
BNEREL 7 (B R IEETER Current portion (included in prepayments
FRIE Je oA FE WK IR ) and other receivables) (1,293) (3,086)
FERNERER Non-current portion 57,880 63,371

REE 2z AN A EFIA RN P B2 R EEERA

The Group's prepaid land lease payments are held under medium-term
lease in the PRC.

AEEDKFIEARSRITHE 2 ERZ BN LB ER
B2 REEANBARES760400 T (Z2TN\F | AR
62,306,000 7T ) (FisE23) ©

The carrying amount of the Group's prepaid land lease payments pledged
as security for the Group'’s banking facilities amounted to approximately
RMB57,694,000 (2008: RMB62,306,000) (note 23).

16.REY*X—KE

16.Investment properties — Group

MIBRARFTREEZ ESHHEL T

Changes to the carrying amount presented in the statement of financial
position can be summarised as follows:

—EThE —EENF

2009 2008

ARMT T ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

R—H—H As at 1 January 10,360 9,700
WE S Revaluation gain on investment properties 490 660
W+=A=+—H As at 31 December 10,850 10,360

REVER _ZTZN\FER_ZZNF+_A=+—HHEB
SRFRPRIERNTT AT RHMERME AR A R (FEA TG %
LB RIS 2 88R) EITE - RAETIREEER —L
EREEERZ BN E 2 ARTHR B EH A - Bl
WaRBEAFEBRRPHER °

REE AR AR PRORFE 2 FERE L -

Investment properties were revalued as at 31 December 2009 and 2008
by RHL Appraisal Ltd, an independent firm of chartered surveyors, who
have the recent experience in the location and category of property being
valued. Fair values were estimated based on recent market transactions for
similar properties in the same location and condition. The revaluation gains
were recognised in profit or loss for the year.

The Group's investment properties are situated on leasehold land under
medium-term in the PRC.



92 x@m{tT#RARAT TIANDE CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

B 5 ¥R R MY R

Notes to the Financial Statements

EtE —FEZ N F+— H=+1—HIFF/Z For the year ended 31 December 2009

17 EERTE - K H

AEEEERN T EBRERBEE, (AF)

17.Deferred tax - Group

The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised by

the Group:
EEB
Arising from
IR R 2R ER REME
Tax Pre-operating Investment &&t
losses expenses properties Total
ARETT AR®TT ARETT ARBTFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZZEZENF—-H—H As at 1 January 2008 145 524 (1,600) (931)
FERFE A= & Credit/(Charge) to profit or
(B ) (PHE9) loss for the year (note 9) 269 112) (216) (59)
RZZFZN\F+=-A=+—H  Asat31 December 2008
ERZZZNF—A—H and 1 January 2009 414 412 (1,816) (990)
FREEREMR (FFE9) Charge to profit or loss
for the year (note 9) (359) (112) (172) (643)
RZZZNFTZA=1T—H  Asat31 December 2009 55 300 (1,988) (1633)

AT BRI EARRR PIAE ZEIERR IR SR DT -

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for the statement
of financial position purposes:

—ETAF —ZTENEF

2009 2008

AR¥ET T AREET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

FIEF IR B B Deferred tax assets 355 826
RIEFIEEE Deferred tax liabilities (1,988) (1,816)
(1,633) (990)

RER - AEE 2 REARBEERL A AR 3,621,000
TL(ZZTN\F : AR¥6,7930007T) + A] AERERE 2
B o AEEEROARKE 221,000 L(ZTZT/N\F : AR
3,393,0007T) 2 A BB B RERIEIER IBEE - B ARaETEA
RRHEDRFIIBE: - WEMAT 2 AR 34000007 (ZFF
NF : AR¥340000070) HERBELETIAEE © BT A ARIER
MIEBEER T —=F ZATZIH -

ERAZAR A Al Il A B A AR IR SRR - A B NHE A A
REH BT 2 BABENREREGRUEEHREEBEIAR
#6,404,000T(ZTEN\F : AK¥1,8050007T) @ AR
HRETEERZEREE R_STNE+_A=1+—
B - REKE R BHARE HEF & 5 A AR 64,042,000 7T
(ZZZN\F : AR¥18,054,0007T) °

At the reporting date, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately
RMB3,621,000 (2008: RMB6,793,000) available for offset against
future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately RMB221,000 (2008: RMB3,393,000) of such losses. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
RMB3,400,000 (2008: RMB3,400,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. All unrecognised tax losses will expire before 2013.

Deferred tax liabilities of RMB6,404,000 (2008: RMB1,805,000) have not
been established for the withholding tax that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries in the PRC because the
Company controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it is not
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future. Such unremitted earnings for investment in subsidiaries totalled
RMB64,042,000 as at 31 December 2009 (2008: RMB18,054,000).
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18.Inventories — Group

—EENE —ETNE
2009 2008
ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
R Raw materials 21,466 16,350
R an Work in progress 8,110 7,447
X B Finished goods 13,646 16,163
43,222 39,960

19.EZRWEREREE -FE 19.Trade and bills receivable - Group
—EThE —ETNEF
2009 2008
ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
=S Trade receivables 59,402 53,107
FEWE IR Bills receivable 51,545 44370
110,947 97,477

AEBRTESEPZEER RN T —EAAZREAT
E - BRUREBR AT EZRITEALER  RMERSER -
W REZ RERARNEANAN - BURFPEEZREES
PRAR o NSRBI BN 415 0 R Y AR AR A8 AR 1 L B RE 2 2 )
EEBEEHIRFETE R

RBRER - B RUIR R EKRRIEZER A MR E Rk
DA

The Group allows a credit period normally ranging from one month to six
months to its trade customers. The bills receivable are non-interest bearing
bank acceptance bills and aged within six months at both reporting dates.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are

reviewed regularly by management.

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivable at the reporting date,
based on the invoice date, is stated as follows:

= “ETT)\F

2009 2008

ARMT ARBF T

RMB’000 RMB'000

0Z29H 0to 90 days 94,608 80,513
912180 H 91 to 180 days 15,722 16,025
1812365 H 181 to 365 days 617 939
110,947 97477

RZZETZNF+=A=+—0H E5RKEREKRERELD
AR#8325000t(ZFZNF : ARKE7,253,00070) 285
EWERE B - AN EEERWESEREHEAREE
RARZEREAE - AR EE AR ERE o BERE
HASE U TARAZENRE AL BI L E SRR R
JEN =15 2 BRER AT -

As at 31 December 2009, trade and bills receivable of approximately
RMB8,325,000 (2008: RMB7,253,000) were past due but not impaired as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts
are still considered recoverable. The ageing analysis of these trade and bills
receivable that were past due as at the reporting date but not impaired,
based on the due date, is as follows:
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19. 5 BIRREVRRE -S8 (&)

19.Trade and bills receivable — Group (Continued)

—EENF —ETNF

2009 2008

ARBT T ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

BiEH1 £ 90H 110 90 days past due 7,734 4,488
BEiEHfo1 =180 H 91 to 180 days past due 484 1,829
EiEHi181 =365 H 181 to 365 days past due 107 936
8,325 7,253

RETENF+_A=1+—8 BHIRRERERZED
AR#102,622,000 7T (ZFT/\F : AR 90,224,0007T) I
RBH - IRARERE - ZFEFRRRRERZHRES Z
RETREBENETFAR @ mikEsin g8 -

EBRMERMEREZEZRKREREZERETREENE
FAM  ZEXPRAKEHEE RIFNEERE - RIES
EEERE  BEREARGE AaNEEERAUEEREIHM
BRAGRERI 22U D - HU B AR ZFERIERER
1 o ANER B I 5 2B HR A HE I SRR (A 2 B 5 I R H5
BEAERR -

TMraEBERER  RERZFLENIHHARERLE -

B RERR B R IE Z REEZA T EEHE -

As at 31 December 2009, trade and bills receivable of RMB102,622,000
(2008: RMB90,224,000) were neither past due nor impaired. These related
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a large
number of diversified customers that had a good track record of credit
with the Group. Based on past credit records, management believes that
no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered to be fully recoverable. The Group did not hold any collateral in
respect of trade receivables past due but not impaired.

The Directors considered that the fair values of trade and bills receivable
are not materially different from their carrying amounts because these
amounts have short maturity periods.

The carrying amounts of the trade and bills receivable are denominated in

the following currencies:

—EEThE —TTN\E

2009 2008

ARET T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR # RMB 88,487 81,344
Zm([ZEr)) United States Dollars (“US$") 22,460 16,133

110,947 97,477
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20.BEFRITERRBITIRREEHR -—KEERQ

=

R-ZEZEN\F+-_A=+—8  AEEZCIEFETER
DIEEARASBEERERITREZERMETEFRITZE
o WEHRERHERRME - TRAARKEE - &
BREFESF378% c RZZEZNFTA=1T—0H  WRE
B2 RITIER °

AEBZERBRTERERTNRSLEBRUARE
HE B ARKI4429000T(ZEZENE: ARK
30,196,0007T) ° AR HIRBINERE - Bz B 2 JNE B
RBI R AERE © SIE RNEE R T IR -

BEHEMRITERRRTERSEHRZ REERA TEBGT
18 :

B2 —TZNF+ = H=+—HIF/Z For the year ended 31 December 2009

20.Pledged bank deposits and bank and cash balances -

Group and Company

As at 31 December 2008, the Group's pledged bank deposits represented
deposits pledged to banks to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group as set out in note 23 to the financial statements. The deposits were
in RMB and carried interest at the rate of 3.78% per annum. There were no
pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2009.

The Group's pledged bank deposits and bank and cash balances
amounted to approximately RMB14,429,000 (2008: RMB30,196,000) were
denominated in RMB. Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of

Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

The carrying amounts of pledged bank deposits and bank and cash

balances are denominated in the following currencies:

&8 AT

Group Company
—EBHhE —ZTTNF —EThEF —ZETN\F
2009 2008 2009 2008
ARYET T AREFT ARET T ARET T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
BIT HKS 1,681 57 1,681 57
=TT uss 648 1,110 - =
AR RMB 14,429 30,196 - =
16,758 31,363 1,681 57

FRBEEERERREREEE-&H

AEEERBIELEEER S RIAN LA SR (i
FE15) BT (M 14) 2 BEC 27 AREHFEEE - Al
FZEZXGBE_T-TFNARTHK - EFHRFE B L
HELE B B =) B B2 58 R E Mot (R R 16kt -

.Non-current assets classified as held for sale - Group

The assets related to the prepaid land lease payments (note 15) and the
buildings (note 14) have been presented as held for sale, following the
approval of the Group's management to sell these assets. The completion
date for the transaction is expected to be end of June 2010. The Directors
are still in active negotiation with the relevant local authorities for the
amount of compensation and other resumption terms and conditions of
the Land 1.



96 KB TERBRAR TIANDE CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

B 5 ¥R R MY R

Notes to the Financial Statements

£t —FEZ S F+— H=+1—HIFF/Z For the year ended 31 December 2009

NR.EFENRRESEZE -£8

22.Trade and bills payable — Group

—EENEF —ZTTN\F

2009 2008

AR®T T ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

2 ZERNER Trade payables 23,767 37,952
ANE S Bills payable - 10,000
23,767 47,952

REERHERGE T ZEERR0E3065K - REZEZASR
it UTREZRNRRENEERERS B ZRR DT -

The Group was granted by its suppliers credit periods ranging from 30 to

365 days. The ageing analysis of trade and bills payable at the reporting

date, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

ZEThF ZTTN\F

2009 2008

AR¥T T ARBFIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

0E9%H 0 to 90 days 22,114 19,674
91E 180 H 91 to 180 days 268 19,762
181 & 365 H 181 to 365 days 524 7,732
i@ 365 H Over 365 days 861 784
23,767 47,952

BHRNEIENRBEZ RAEERARKENE - A
REHEEY  WENESERENREBEZRAERDAR
BERE - TRESRE -

The carrying amounts of trade and bills payable are denominated in RMB.

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values of trade and bills

payable are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value.
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23.8RITRRE—KE 23.Bank borrowings - Group

JEERRITEENT : The bank loans are repayable as follows:
ZEENF —EENEF
2009 2008
AR¥T T ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RERHK—FR On demand or within one year 107,169 110,054
REZF In the second year 12,000 49,560
RE=ZRFN(BEEERE) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 30,000 =
149,169 159,614

B R {E A A EMER 2 5B Less: Amount due for settlement within 12

GIERBIEE) months (shown under current liabilities) (107,169) (110,054)
R+=—EAREAEE Amount due for settlement after 12 months 42,000 49,560
FIARITEEOAARKE - ERRARITEEZF The carrying amounts of all bank borrowings are denominated in RMB.
BENENF531%ZE896%( =ZFZ/)\F : 554%F8.96%) - Short-term and long-term bank borrowings are arranged at floating
BEAEBAXB RS ERAR - RHRRBBRTEE interest rates ranged from 5.31% to 8.96% (2008: 5.54% to 8.96%) per
AREEZ RITER(MEE20) ~ W% - BE &&E (T annum exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risks, and are secured
14) RFEART + 3038 & FRIA (i aE15) 1ERER - by the Group's bank deposits (note 20), property, plant and equipment

(note 14) and prepaid land lease payments (note 15).
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24 RFEW A — £ E

AEBZEERANIEABFEL  A2ERETRK  BET
% MR BRI iR 2 £ ER MR 2 Rk

AR A MFTEZ DA ¢

24.Deferred income - Group

The Group's deferred income represents a government grant obtained for
subsidising the construction of the production lines and ancillary facilities

for the manufacture of isobutylene, polyisobuylene and chloro acetic acid.

Analysed for reporting purpose as:

—EThE —ETNF
2009 2008
ARET T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
mEaE (B BRRBERNRMERR Current liabilities (included in accruals
N EH At FE5RIE) and other payables) 2,740 2,740
JEmEBEE Non-current liabilities 21,412 24,152
24,152 26,892
25. A 25.Share capital
)
Amount
f&n B T AREET T
Number of shares HKS$'000 RMB'000
JETE ¢ Authorised:
SIREE 0 BT R Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
RZZZNF-—HA—H —ZZTT)N\F As at 1 January 2008, 31 December
R_ZETNF+-_A=+—H 2008 and 2009 100,000,000,000 1,000,000
BEITRAR Issued and fully paid:
FRXEE 001 B L imAk Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
RZZZNF-HA—H ZZTZT)N\F As at 1 January 2008, 31 December
MZFTNF+=ZA=+—H 2008 and 2009 400,000,000 4,000 4,031
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26.f#E - KER AT 26.Reserves - Group and Company
£5 Group
AEBREB AR BRSBTS EREHRIIR The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein are

presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

PAY-il Company
MR LBGEH  RAER AREX
AR LB Gl i BEkE
RiaE Merger relief Share-based Capital ~ Foreign currency )
Share contributed payment contribution translation REEN  Proposedfinal fi
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve  Retained profits dividends Total
ABEFR  ABEFR  ARMTR  ABMTR  ABETR  ABETR  ARRTR  ARMTR
RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB1000 RMB1000
(Mza) (Bt3En) (Ptzke) (B3 o) (Mizt )
(notea) (note h) (notee) (notef) (note g)
RZZEN\F-A—B&R  Balanceat | January 2008 89544 111,137 - %I (12,207) 127)9 4481 31,099
BfiRE Dividends paid = = = = = = (4481) (4481)
REZENRRS Equity-settled shared-based
FERY payments expenses - - 425 1083 - - - 1508
22\ ERERERE 2008 proposed finaldividends - - - - - (4400) 4400 -
EREERZEFELE Loss and total comprehensive
loss for the year - - - - (14643) (13480) - (28125)
RZZENEFZA=+-H  Balanceat31 December 2008
RoEENE-F-BEH  and 1 Janway 2009 89544 11,37 105 203 (26850) 109311 4400 290001
BfRE Dividends paid - - - - - - (4:400) (4:400)
ERENRRS Equity-settled share-based
REFY payments expenses - - 300 1071 - - - 1371
“ERNERERARE 2009 proposed finaldividends - - - - - (8800) 8800 -
EREHREENREE Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - 831 1420 - 2051
RZZENETZA Balance at 31
=t+-R&#H December 2009 89,544 11,137 725 3,105 (26,019) 101,931 8,800 289,223
@ R wE (a) Share premium
BERHSHEANTNE  AFRDEEERAZESAH Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the
DIRTFAATIRE - EEREEEDIRIKE BEE - AQ share premium account of the Company are distributable to the
T EBEREHEBEN A B E%5BIER R 2 E& - owners of the Company provided that immediately following the date

on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debt as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.
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26.f#%E—SEER AT (F)

26.Reserves — Group and Company (Continued)

2\ & (4&) Company (Continued)
(b) FFFlfAE (b) Special reserve
BRI ERBEAEER — ST M7z EHEMKE

BB AR 2 ERRAREA R R RERIGZ SN E A
PEHIEM BT 2 AR RO EEZ HEE5E -

Special reserve represents the difference between the paid in capital
of the PRC subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation
in 2004 and the nominal value of the Company's shares issued in

exchange for the control in these subsidiaries.

© BEAREL (c) Surplus reserve fund

RABIRFBK 2 WE AR 2 ERMARE - 2 ZMt
BARASFEBERTIRENPZETASLERH
DNES  AERGEHEDN BB A RZEMEARZ 50%
Bl - E—RIBEAT @ BRATESER AERERSE -
FHiBE RN E AT E A RIEFTHE A 72 EE R
o BN ERBHNES ZFMERE  FE2HE
PMELRFMEZRZ 25% °

Articles of Association of the Company's subsidiaries established in
the PRC require the appropriation of certain percentage of their profit
after taxation each year to the surplus reserve fund until the balance
reaches 50% of their registered capital. In normal circumstances,
the surplus reserve fund shall only be used for making up losses,
capitalisation into registered capital and expansion of the subsidiaries'
production and operation. For the capitalisation of surplus reserve fund
into registered capital, the remaining amount of such reserve shall not
be less than 25% of the registered capital.

(@) Zrmvd (d) Public welfare fund

REFERRE(R_ZZRAFEN R 2T F—H
—REMAIZ BRG] ERBEKI AR BB
BRES%E10% 2 RBRENBRE RS - MAmER
ARREZEBENMARBEA LG 2518 - KL
TERZIBAT  PHEMEDIK °

Pursuant to relevant regulations before the enactment of Company
Law of the PRC (revised in 2005) on 1 January 2006, the Company's
subsidiaries established in the PRC shall make allocation from their
profit after taxation at the rate of 5% to 10% to the public welfare fund.
The public welfare fund can only be utilised on capital nature items
for collective welfare of employees. The public welfare fund is not
distributable other than in liquidation.

€ KRG(TZHE#E (e) Share-based payment reserve

LABRAD S 15 2 SROB B FE iR AR A B AR D 4 T A&
EETRERER AEERZHE  BEERENRESS
SRR BT FE 3(s) PRk SR IA B S8 2 FRIB M B 2 & R
TR o

The share-based payment reserve represents equity-settled share-
based payments to certain employees and a supplier of the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
equity-settled share-based payments in note 3(s) to the financial
statements.
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26.Reserves — Group and Company (Continued)

= (48) Company (Continued)
BRI E 7 () Capital contribution reserve
REZZTLF - ARAZBEEERARETARF—AL In 2007, certain number of the Company's shares were granted to
BT —F#AE 2 ARERY - BERMFEIETISERE K an employee of the Company by the Company's ultimate holding
- FIRERB 2 AR EN2ERMELEB ZARE company, with non-market performance vesting conditions, with its
METE  WABSAIRRB L S ERELE ARG fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value
SAFERY - WRIEHE IR of shares granted at the grant date, expenses on a straight-line method
over the vesting period as equity settled share based payments
expenses, with a corresponding increase in capital contribution
reserve.
SNEE S (1 (g) Foreign currency translation reserve
HNESE W (R B BB R E SN 275 2 B IS SRR FTEE A2 2 T The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign
BIERZFE o B BEHIRBIM I HRERMTE3(d) FrEi st exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
BURBRIR © statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 3(d) to the
financial statements.
EHERHAZER (h) Merger relief contributed surplus
EHERAARBERBREANEEN ST NF#EITZ Merger relief contributed surplus represents the difference between
BARMESEHEA R 2 EEFEHEARQ R AIE the net assets value of the PRC subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the

SO A R R IR T 31T 2 AR 2 R AR AR T (E 2 B Y

MEBARR-2F

Group reorganisation in 2004 and the nominal value of the Company's

shares issued in exchange for the control in these subsidiaries.

27.Interests in and due from/to subsidiaries - Company

—EENE —ZETNEF

2009 2008

AR AR

RMB RMB

JELETIRE © BRA Unlisted investments, at cost 3 3
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27. AMB DR 2 s - B B2 RRIE N
ME QR — A7 (&)

27.Interests in and due from/to subsidiaries - Company
(Continued)

HE_ZTTNEF+_A=+—HAL ~XEERBARZ Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 December 2009 are as

FIEAT follows:
i DAV AvEE BETER/BA
BB MR A 2 EfE
Place of incorporation/  Nominal value of issued RAREEEE B DT
E establishment and ordinary/paid-up Percentage of equity FTEEK
Name operations registered share capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
B it
Direct Indirect
BRERBBRAR BB BT 100% - REER
Great Growth Holdings Limited Hong Kong HKS1 Investment holding
IR A R A BB 7T 100% - REER
Great Spirit Holdings Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 Investment holding
BIEERBR AR BB 18T 100% - REER
Great Promise Holdings Limited Hong Kong HKS1 Investment holding
BEIERAR AT KBRS 268%7T - 100%  {REER
Smartcham Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$268 Investment holding
BERCEERAR RERRES 1251%7T - 100%  REER
Smartpoint Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands US$1,251 Investment holding
BREERARAR RBRIHS 477 7T - 100%  HREER
Techsmart Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands uss477 Investment holding
ASRARICBBRAT o 600,000 7T - 100% - BUERHEERAL
IER
Weifang Common Chem PRC US$600,000 Research and development,
Co, Ltd. manufacture and sales of
fine chemical products
@M ITARRAR H AR 5,0000007C - 100%  F%E - SHE RO EHAE
IEm
Shanghai Dehong Chemical PRC RMB5,000,000 Research and development,
Company Limited selling and distribution of
fine chemical products
RO BBRAT FE 5,200,000 7T = 100% B BUEREERHME
IEm
Weifang Parasia Chem Co,, Ltd PRC US$5,200,000 Research and development,
manufacture and sales of
fine chemical products
ARG RRCTARAR] i 10,800,000 37T - 100%  BE - BEERAERMAE
TER
Weifang Binhai Petro-Chem PRC US$10,800,000 Research and development,

Co, Ltd

ZEREGBEWEER - ABEBRIRERA »

manufacture and sales of
fine chemical products

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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28. AR X 2 FIE
BREZEBRENS

ARARRZETENF+ AW A #E RN —IBEREE
([MEARESTE)) - BRI R EAEE 2 KELE T
Biz&7h  BEASEEMAKERARSBMERTZES
EERES  HER B REIBZISHZHMBEANL
REEZEBENZEAA BREGFEH_ZZRFELTA
MERER  BRBATF  BEERESEIRERS
40,000,00017 BB AR #E - BERRAERE T B I5 6 AR RE &%
40,000,000 ARAR 5 °

REZZTZENF-_A—H8  AAFRREARRZEREE
M&EKES KU BT 4000000 BRE - R=F
ZNF+TZA=+T—HB  BREFEETEREERKT
2 BERRFE T R IR 5 20 B 53,790,000k (=TT )\ & ¢
3,7900000% ) + HE R E% B HIA R R B EITRHD Z095%
(ZZZTN\F : 095%) °

FrERER 2 B ERE B TIEA T

B2 —TZNF+ = H=+—HIF/Z For the year ended 31 December 2009

28.Share-based payments

Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company has approved and adopted a share option scheme (the
"Share Option Scheme") on 4 October 2006 for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to the Directors, eligible employees, suppliers,
customers, any shareholder of each member of the Group or associated
company or any of their respective associates, and advisers or consultants
of the Group who contribute to the success of the Group. The Share
Option Scheme has become effective for a period of 10 years commencing
on 4 October 2006 and up to 40,000,000 options entitling the holders
thereof to subscribe for up to 40,000,000 shares may be granted under the
Share Option Scheme.

On 1 February 2008, the Company granted 4,000,000 share options to the
eligible employees and a supplier under the Share Option Scheme of the
Company. As at 31 December 2009, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme was 3,790,000 (2008: 3,790,000), representing 0.95%
(2008: 0.95%) of the shares of the Company in issue at the date.

Details of the specific categories of options are as follows:

ES N B RREA
Category of Rit A SEAH Tl f1feE Number of
grantee Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period Exercise price share options
BT
HKS
&8 “ZT/\¥-A-H “EThF-A-H “ETNF-R-BE-FT-ME—A=1-H 064 718000
Employees 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 1 February 2009 to 31 January 2014
“ZT\F-A—H “Z-TF-f-H “I-TF-f-BE-FT-ME—A=1-H 064 1,077,000
1 February 2008 1 February 2010 1 February 2010to 31 January 2014
“ZT\F-A—H “Z—%Zf-H —I——4-f-BE-FT-MF—A=1-H 064 1,795,000
1 February 2008 1 February 2011 1 February 2011 to 31 January 2014
HER “ZT\F-A—H “ZTNE-A—H ZEENF-R-BE-T-ME-A=1-R 064 40,000
Supplier 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 1 February 2009 to 31 January 2014
“ET\¥-A-H “T-Z§-f-H “I-TF-f-BE-FT-ME—A=1-H 064 60000
1 February 2008 1 February 2010 1 February 2010to 31 January 2014
“ET/\¥-A-H “Z—%Zf-H —T——4-f-BE-FT-MF—A=1-H 064 100,000
1 February 2008 1 February 2011 1 February 2011 to 31 January 2014
Bat 3,790,000

Total
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28. AR {3 2 RIE () 28.Share-based payments (Continued)
BREZE B R 2 (/) Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)
RERBARTTHE 2 BREFISIAT - Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as follows:
—EENF —ET)\F
2009 2008
BREHA METIGTEE S E NFEFHEITEE
Number of Weighted average Number of  Weighted average
share option exercise price share option exercise price
BT BT
HKS$ HKS
RE M ARITE Outstanding at the beginning 3,790,000 0.64 - -
of the year
FRRH Granted during the year - - 4,000,000 0.64
FRRIK Forfeited during the year - - (210,000) 064
REREARITHE Outstanding at the end of the year 3,790,000 0.64 3,790,000 0.64
RERATE Exercisable at the end of the year 758,000 0.64 = =
FRNWBITEERE(ZZZNE &) - RAFERHK No share option had been exercised during the year (2008: Nil). The
T RBARME 2 IR MR E KB R4V F (2T N\F : 51 options outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted average
) remaining contractual life of 4.1 years (2008: 5.1 years).
BRE=ZTEXAEEBHE 822 _TT \F+_A=1+— For the year ended 31 December 2008, the fair value of the options
AIEFE @ SRRENREBBRZ ARBELNA027ET - A determined at the date of grant using the Trinomial Model was
ARETR=ZIEXPEEEFE - AT RBAZEX 2 ER approximately HK$0.27 each. This fair value was calculated using the

Trinomial Model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

—EENEF

2008

1TEE Exercise price 77T HKS0.64
TEET G HA Expected life 6 years
SEL A Expected volatility 49.59%
SN ES Dividend yield 1.95%
2 R B £ 1 2 Risk-free interest rate 2.20%
TRE R IE IR F BT 2 Hfh E T ARIRBERFZ Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of
BEREREAEEE - EEARNERZEGTFHERA share prices of other listed companies with similar business nature over the
SEEZ REMGT - BTREEE  TERFIRTAZSE previous 6 years. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
ARESEELFE based on the Group's best estimate, for the effects of non transferability,

exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.
BAE 2 AR BB AEREIZRBEEE  WEBEERA The fair value of the options will be amortised over the vesting periods on a

PR © straight-line method and expensed in profit or loss.
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29. EAREYE 29.Capital commitments
rEH Group
RwER - BRASBAEERBZEARERENT ¢ The Group's capital commitments in respect of production facilities at the

reporting date are as follows:

—EENF —EENE
2009 2008
ARBT T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
Y - RS kA Property, plant and equipment
BETAVERIZ Contracted but not provided for 2,742 17,061
BEERRTA Authorised but not contracted for 25,739 12,390
28,481 29,451
#AF Company
AR EN AL ] B ARSE - The Company does not have any capital commitments.
30. K& HEAIE 30.Operating lease commitments
AEBEDHAA Group - as lessor
RZZEZNF+T_A=+T—H BETAHELCEHE As at 31 December 2009, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease
AEEEY 2 BiERIERERRETEIAT receipts under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:
—EENEF —EENEFE
2009 2008
ARET ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
—F2ZR Within one year 487 87
RE_ZRFRN(BRIEERMF) In the second to fifth year inclusive 514 -
1,001 87
EASEGCEHERHT  HHLABETHR—2=F Under operating lease arrangements of the Group, the leases are
TE - —RAERTEBRARERBLZ(FEMIES - negotiated for an average terms of one to three years. The terms of the

leases generally require the tenants to pay security deposits.

ARAERLBA Company - as lessor
AR B AN A A B E R E WK - The Company does not have any minimum lease receipts under non-

cancellable operating leases.
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30. REHEHAIE (])
KR FEBEBA

REZZAF+T-A=+—0 RETAIRELLEHEE -
REBEN 2 BRRIEASNFERNT -

30.0perating lease commitments (Continued)

Group - as lessee

As at 31 December 2009, the total future minimum lease payments by the
Group under non-cancellable operating leases payable are as follows:

—EThE ZZETN\F

2009 2008

AR¥TT ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

—F2ZR Within one year 320 208
RE_ZRFN(BRIEERRF) In the second to fifth year inclusive 6 39
326 247

W“Tﬂhﬁ AEASEREE THAZEMEN ZES -
HamrTeR—2=81%  mNEARRNEESE
E WA BREERMRAEE

AR AEREEA

REZZAFT-A=+—0 RETAIRELLHEE -
RABEN 2 BRRIEAENFTERNT -

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Group for
certain of its offices. Leases are negotiated for an average term of one to
three years and rentals are fixed over the lease terms and do not include
contingent rentals.

Company - as lessee

As at 31 December 2009, the total future minimum lease payments by the

Company under non-cancellable operating leases payable are as follows:

—EThE ZTTN\F

2009 2008

AR¥T T ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

—F 2R Within one year 270 52
REZZRFEN(BEEEMSE) In the second to fifth year inclusive 6 -
276 52

WMTHEH REARBREETHAEMEN ZES -
Hamrror—F  MRNERANESEE - T
\L%{HEJEJZ%%H@ >

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Company for
certain of its offices. Leases are negotiated for an average term of one year
and rentals are fixed over the lease terms and do not include contingent
rentals.
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RBL XS

@ REAN  AEERAHTRACEBEERBEREGRAR
([T R5A D) XS HOARKE 155000t (ZEFN
F: AR¥1550007T) © MARRAERITESEAS
RohBEBEEm S M TEERTZEN

b) R=ZZZN\F+=A=1+—H ' #HRILAREEEES
%@)\EMS5190007EZ§E«7§EJ*$EWE%E S+ RiE
o ZIIFEBER TS NFMG o

@ EBEEABZMEFHBENPBIHRRMEN -

SRR EE

AEBEEEMBERE : Ti5ER(BEEER R X
&) - EERREREERR o $$§2¥%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ@#%ﬂ
BEESRMBS AR N  BREERETEHARE
BB RINERZAETE - AN&KE B A M
RERERRERIES - T8 EXSEHEIEEEES
ERETEBTBEBEIGE  UDMRGIEEBRRERM
T e ) SR o

AEEURABEENMEEYBEE  TARAEHES
7 o ARBEMAS&RERNN P BERE T XE - b -
MiE 2w BERBRE D NI BEERABEHME

(i) SMEmpE

HRANEBETEBRS BERBEEZENEITRE
TCRHE - SRR EE S TINER MR o AN EIR R
PEMINER S - BEREBBIEINESPHRER - &
B RESNERR - WEERBREHREEINE
RSNE R ©

RZZEZNF+_A=+—8" QDAE%R%E&%E
HIEE(E T F& £ 50 M FT A A Al B A =TT E -
A REE R G | RIR SR w A&, R A@}\Eﬁ%
823,000 (ZZZ)\F : AR¥661,0007T) * FERE
AETTEHEMN B 2 FEIERMEE X e B8 -

#HE—FE/F+— F=1—HF4¥/Z For the year ended 31 December 2009

31.Related party transactions

(@) During the year, the Group had rental payment of approximately
RMB155,000 (2008: RMB155,000) to Weifang Tianhong Corporate
Management and Consultancy Company Limited ("Weifang
Tianhong") in which all the executive directors of the Company have
beneficial interests and can exercise significant influence.

(b) As at 31 December 2008, Weifang Tianhong pledged its leasehold
land and building for the banking facilities of the Group approximately
RMB5,519,000. The pledge was subsequently released in 2009.

() The remuneration of key management personnel are set out in note 11
to the financial statements.

32.Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to financial risks: market risk (including currency risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management focuses on unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.
The Group currently does not have any written risk management policies
and guidelines. However, the Directors meet periodically and cooperate
closely with key management to analyse and formulate strategies to

manage and monitor financial risks.

The Group is not engaged in the trading of financial assets for speculative
purposes nor does it write options. The most significant financial risks to
which the Group is exposed are described below. See also note 32(v) for a

summary of financial assets and liabilities by category.

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group has exposure to foreign currency risk as certain of its
business transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in HKS and
USS. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of other foreign currency transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

As at 31 December 2009, if the RMB had weakened/strengthened
5% against HKS and USS with all other variables held constant,
consolidated profit for the year and retained profits would have
been approximately RMB823,000 (2008: RMB661,000) higher/lower,
arising mainly as a result of the foreign exchange gain/loss on trade
receivables denominated in US$.
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NR.MKRREE (F)

() SHEmEE (H)

BE_TTN\F+_A=1—B L FEMBEHRRMEADN
REDI AR MR R -

(i) FYEm

AEEES 2 MXEBRBEIZSRETEMEE - AL
B30 AR BEAILTE A AP ERRER - AT - B2
BeEsMERR  TEEBNATEREITEANEK
j_uinn °

TRERAE B TR RAR B R A 88 A F YRR
IR R R B E) +/-05% (ZZT T N\F © +/-05%) HIGUK
[E o S ER AR EERHRE BN B EER AR
REAE - TR HM AT S ERERTE -

32.Financial risk management (Continued)

(i) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis included in the financial statements for the year

ended 31 December 2008 had been prepared on the same basis.
(i) Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk for changes in interest rates
relates primarily to the Group's floating interest rate borrowings. The
Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risk. However, management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group's profit for
the year and retained profits to a possible change in interest rates of
+/-0.5% (2008: +/-0.5%), with effect from the beginning of the year.
The calculations are based on the Group's financial assets and liabilities
held at the reporting date. All other variables are held constant.

ALHE DT
Group Company
Profit for the year and Profit for the year and

retained profits

FRE s MR & A

retained profits

F e M AR B 7

RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARETTT
+0.5% +0.5% -0.5%
—ZEFhE+=-_RA=+—H 31 December 2009 (462) 4 (4)
—ZEENE+=_A=+—H 31 December 2008 (524) 5 (5)

REBHBRIHRANBRERAT  RENNERBIRIEES
FIREHIIR - WAIME A E TR fE B A ROR K+ — (8 A #fE
EVR IR AR B B PTERYRT Mk ©

rate over the next twelve months period.

BE_ZZENF+Z A=+ A LFENMBRRAEA
BREDITTZIEREERS -

The assumed changes in interest rates are considered to be reasonably
possible based on observation of current market conditions and represents
the management's assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest

The sensitivity analysis included in the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2008 had been prepared on the same basis.
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B2 —TZNF+ = H=+—HIF/Z For the year ended 31 December 2009
2. KR ERE () 32.Financial risk management (Continued)

(iii) 1=E/E (iii) Credit risk

SRR A I BRRKRNRIT RS & - BRI -
PRSI N L GRIRR R EE - BIEASERA S
MBEEARNRAERRR  RITRIIRSEHRNE
ERBER  RERHFIEESEENR -

REEEFIEBER - AR GRERRSRIFNE P H
EEm°

AEEWEEANEEETEAR  BRRRSBESE
BEREFT - Rl - FEAAEMEZRPE - 5=
ZENF+ A=+ —HEZREERN62% (ZFZT\
F70%) c AEERECEERR  BEEESRIEYL
BAERMNEZE AR  WMEEE TP AR
MEERER °

(iv) B 1L R

EEERBERRE  AEESERIEREEERS
ZRNREMASFERE  (EALAKBEZEMRNE
£ URFERERENDOTE  HTARTHER
BARBERNRSRENBRVBEERAENDIEAE

= e

The carrying amount of the bank and cash balances and trade, bills and
other receivables included in the consolidated statement of financial
position represented the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to the Group's financial assets. The credit risk on bank and cash

balances is limited because the counterparties have high credit ratings.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to

customers with an appropriate credit history.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with exposure
spread over a number of customers and counterparties. However,
the geographical location of customers is mainly on the PRC which
accounted for 62% (2008: 70%) of the trade receivables as at 31
December 2009. In order to minimise the credit risk, management will
endeavor to build an extensive customer base that spread over the
world, which can minimise the credit risk by geographical location.

(iv) Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of

financial assets and liabilities.
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NR.MKRREE (F)

32.Financial risk management (Continued)

(iv) FE B 1L )R B (4B (iv) Liquidity risk (Continued)
HARAEE NG BRITEENERITHENRER » 7]
HAKERNERERFLESE  HEFSRR ;T RAE
EE AT A mERE RN RERE - NEEES
TN EEES - RUABRBRIAE - AEEKBRT
BEESHETAESHNEENRIR

As the Group has short term bank borrowings which could be
renewed on an annual basis at the discretion of the Group within
limit approved by banks, the Directors are of the opinion that, taking
into account the presently available facilities and internal financial
resources of the Group, the Group has sufficient working capital for
its present requirements. The Group relies on bank borrowings as a
significant source of liquidity.

TRERE KRRV N R TR I 5 B EREIER The table below summarises the maturity profile of the financial

liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

={@ A Ask =P ES
JEZ K —FARN —ERFRN KRR ETE BREE
Within Between Total
3 months 3 months Between 1to  undiscounted Carrying
or on demand to 1 year 5 years amount amount
ARETIT ARETT ARETIT ARETIT ARETIT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
£8 Group
ZTTNF 2009
BOREMNE  BRE Trade, bills and other payables 56,494 17,880 = 74,374 74,374
REMERFRIR
RITEE Bank borrowings 35819 77,634 46,039 159,492 149,169
=H) Total 92313 95,514 46,039 233,866 223,543
—EENE 2008
BHRENE - ENRE Trade, bills and other payables 44,809 58,024 - 102,833 102,833
REMERFIR
RITIEE Bank borrowings 64,243 51,399 52,157 167,799 159,614
aat Total 109,052 109,423 52,157 270,632 262,447
AF Company
—TTNEF 2009
Ho A e FRIE Other payables 308 44 = 352 352
FERHT B A RIZUA Amounts due to subsidiaries 72 = - 72 72
B Total 380 44 = 424 424
—ETN\F 2008
E eI Other payables 537 132 = 669 669
FEFTHIB A R ZRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 264 - - 264 264
=H) Total 801 132 = 933 933
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NR.MKRREE (F)

32.Financial risk management (Continued)

(v) BELEHZHNBEERE EBHE (v) Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category
o - DRIRZBENER_TEAF+ZA=+—H
RN EEERBEREBERMEATSE - EREH
B TEMBERINAZ B E RN E - B2 ME30)

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities recognised
as at 31 December 2008 and 2009 may also be categorised as follows.
See notes 3()) and 3(l) for explanations about how the category of

K 3()BRLEA - financial instruments affects their subsequent measurement.
£E N
Group Company
—EEhEF —ETNF —EThE —ETNEF
2009 2008 2009 2008
ARETT AREFTT AR¥T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
BREE Financial assets
ER R EWFOE Loans and receivables:
—Z S EUIER — Trade receivables 59,402 53,107 - -
—EREE — Bills receivable 51,545 44,370 - -
— H W Ia — Other receivables 22,155 4993 242 322
— ARFIRITER — Restricted bank deposits - 10,000 - =
— RTT RIS - Bank and cash balances 16,758 21,363 1,681 57
— FEUSHT B A RIFIE — Amounts due from
subsidiaries - - 191,188 191,659
— AR B — Dividend receivables - = 100,557 102,911
149,860 133,833 293,668 294,949
g 5=Ri Financial liabilities
B ERR AT 2R Financial liabilities measured
BHam at amortised cost:
—Z SRR — Trade payables 23,767 37,952 - =
—ENEE — Bills payable - 10,000 - =
— H A fETRE — Other payables 50,607 54,881 352 669
—RITEE — Bank borrowings 149,169 159,614 - =
— FERIHTB A R FIE — Amounts due to
subsidiaries - - 72 264
223,543 262,447 424 933
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3B.EAREE

AEEMNEAEEBEENERAEEGENUAFTETR
e ARAEERBKEREREETE  #mARRK
HRIEAR O R o

AEEGENOERRANBEE R EREENRRFE - &
BRABRHEERGE BERARHBEELAGRER A%
B R R RRIK SRR - BT ARREDE
A~ ERHERRE SN EEERE

REEDRBEGHEHABER L RERHER » b=
EETEAD AR TR ©

R¥RE ANERERLL R

33.Capital management

The Group's capital management objectives are to ensure the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern and to provide an adequate return
to shareholders by pricing goods commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristic of
the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell
assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio. This ratio is calculated as set out in the table below.

The debt-to-equity ratio at the reporting date was as follows:

REE
Group
—EThE —EZTNF
2009 2008
AR®TT ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BE Borrowings
— & — Current 107,169 110,054
— B E — Non-current 42,000 49,560
B SRITRIR B Less: Bank and cash balances and
BEIIFIRITIFR pledged bank deposits (16,758) (31,363)
BT Net debt 132,411 128,251
e iERE Total equity 387,948 348,931
ERERLE Debt-to-equity ratio 34.13% 36.75%
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